
 

 
AGENDA 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION INFORMATION 

Public information on this meeting is posted outside City Hall. 
 

We welcome you to watch Board Meetings via live stream. 
You will find this option on our website at http://www.bcoha.org. 
 
If you would like to comment on a public hearing agenda item, please select the best option for your 
participation: 
 

•  Join us via Zoom (please mute your device until called upon) 
    Join the Webinar: https://zoom.us/j/95503161717 
    Webinar ID: 955 0316 1717 
 
•   Address the Board in person at Ketchum City Hall or the Hailey City Hall dependent upon the 
meeting location. 
•   Submit your comments in writing at info@bcoha.org (by 24 hours prior to the meeting) 
     This agenda is subject to revisions. All revisions will be underlined. 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: By Board Chairman Keith Perry 
ROLL CALL: Pursuant to Idaho Code Section 74-204(4), all agenda items are action items, and a vote 
may be taken on these items. 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD: Communications from the 
Board of Directors 

1. Public Comment submitted 
2. Public Comment in person 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE LIASONS: Updates from the Liaisons on their jurisdictions  
3. Liaison Reports 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE STAFF: Updates from the Staff  
4. Staff Update- Executive Director, Carissa Connelly 

CONSENT AGENDA:   
ALL ACTION ITEMS  - The Board is asked to approve the following listed items by a single vote, except 
for any items that a board member asks to be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately. 

5. Approval of the November 19, 2025, BCHA Board Meeting Minutes 

 

 

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

Wednesday, December 17, 2025, 10:30 AM 

191 5th St. West, Ketchum, Idaho 83340 

http://www.bcoha.org/


6. Approval of the November 2025 Financial Report 
7. Recommendation to Adopt January Meeting Schedule 
8. Recommendation to Approve Independent Contractor Agreement with Rian Rooney 
9. Recommendation to adopt Amendment to Silvercreek Living Masterlease 

NEW BUSINESS: 
10. Recommendation to Adopt Blaine County Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice- 

Housing Policy & Program Strategist, Rian Rooney 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 



December 17, 2025- Monthly Staff Update 

These updates are meant to highlight new outputs or efforts and not reiterate regular responsibilities. 

GOAL 1: BUILD ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE + CAPACITY TO SERVE REGIONAL HOUSING 

OPPORTUNITIES + GAPS 

- Continuing to train on Homekeeper and Salesforce, added Credit Check feature and working to 

get annual compliance to be handled within the system (Team) 

- Conducted analysis of BCHA’s hard costs to provide the services we do to assist with our 

requests to local governments for annual funding as well as to propose new fees to the BCHA 

Board during their July meeting, continuing this discussion with Board into early 2026 (Heather, 

Carissa) 

- Preparing updated contract for services between BCHA and Blaine County and presenting for 

review and approval during January board meeting. (Heather, Carissa) 

 
GOAL 2: RECOMMEND + ADVOCATE FOR POLICY THAT PROMOTES HOUSING 

- Published and presented Analysis of Impediments to Housing Choice to housing partners, 

County Commissioners, planners from multiple jurisdictions. (Rian) 

- Published quarterly BCHA waitlist data in November (Heather) 

- Multiple mediated discussions with WRCHT regarding River Bend apartments proposal near St. 

Luke’s, in advance of the Blaine County Commissioners hearing. Carol Barkes (IACRM) acted as 

mediator. Draft Covenant almost ready for next public hearing of the Commissioners December 

18. As of December 12, high-level outstanding items include the length of the term, default 

provisions and how to handle foreclosure, and eligibility criteria for local seniors and remote 

workers. (Rian, Carissa) 

- Rian’s contract for services is available for Board review December 18 (Carissa) 

 

GOAL 3: EXPAND, COORDINATE, + IMPROVE SERVICES TO CREATE HOUSING STABILITY 

- Reduced walk-in office hours between Christmas and New Years  

- Since the last Board meeting, Silvercreek welcomed 3 new households (6 individuals) and 

recorded 1 household move-out (1 individual). At Lift Tower Lodge, 1 household (1 individual) 

moved in, with no move-outs during the reporting period. (Daniel) 

- Attended the in-person Interagency Meeting aimed at strengthening working relationships with 

partner service organizations in the valley. Discussion topics included challenges in 

disseminating information about available services and opportunities to improve referral 

pathways. (Daniel, Liz) 

- Attended the Community Safety Meeting where current topics related to immigration and 

associated community needs were discussed. (Daniel) 



- Attended the Region 4 Homelessness Meeting, where we reviewed the updated HUD 

Continuum of Care grant application requirements and discussed planning for the upcoming PIT 

homelessness count. (Daniel) 

Silver Creek Living Occupancy 

Month  

Number of 
Current Tenants 

Number of 
Current Tenants 
(FY26 to date) 

Number of Vacant 
Rooms 

Number of Open 
Beds 

October 66 66 2 30 

 

November (1st-
13th) 

62 62 6 36 

December (1st-9th) 67 67 5 31 

FY to date 66 66 8 36 

 

Number of Applicants on BCHA Waitlist 

 
Month 

 
Number of Applicants 
currently on waitlist 

 
Increase or 

Decrease since previous 
month 

October 1066 - 

November 1082 +16 

December 1117 +35 

FY 26 to date 1117 +51 

GOAL 4: INFORM, ENGAGE, COLLABORATE 

- Presentation on how to talk about housing and why it matters with guest speaker from a coastal 

Oregon advocacy organization at the Community Library with 37 in-person attendees. (Carissa) 

- Housing Partner Meeting with 25 local leaders covered partner updates, the role and value of a 

local advocacy group, and the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice. (Team) 

https://vimeo.com/showcase/tcl-archive?video=1129606224


- Presentation on Analysis of Impediments to the public at the Limelight to 17 community 

members with a very engaged Q&A. (Rian, team) 

 

GOAL 5: STEWARD/PRESERVE + EXPAND PORTFOLIO OF DEED RESTRICTED HOMES 

HOA Costs 

- Assisted a Homeowner with an appointment to reviewed questions regarding her HOA (Liz, 

Jacklyn, Rian)  

Data and application transition: HomeKeeper –Fully transitioned into new system and things are 

working well. Continuing to gather feedback on how to improve systems and product (Rian, Heather, Liz) 

 

Month 

 

Rental, 
Full App. 

 

Owner, 
Full App. 

 

Transitional 
Full App. 

 

Full Apps 
Reviewed 

 
Applicant 
Assistance 

 
Total Applicants 

assisted 

October 2 3 1 6 14 
26 

November 8 2 6 11 12 39 

December 
(1st-9th )  

9 3 7 19 14 52 

FY to date 19 8 14 36 55 132 

 

Compliance 

- Working with legal team on enforcing compliance with two homeowners and three landlords 
(Liz, and Carissa) 

 

Annual Compliance & Assistance 

Month 
Homeowner 
Compliance 
Completed 

Renter 
Recertification 

Completed 

Homeowner 
Compliance in 

progress 

Renter 
Recertification 

In progress 

 

Homeowner 
Assistance 

with 
submitting 



Capital 
Improvement  

October 3 3 2 2 
2 

November 9 3 3 0 1 

December 
(1st-9th ) 

8 3 9 1 0 

FY to date 20 9 13 3 3 

 

 

Sale of Deed-Restricted Units 

- Molly Mendelsohn’s 1 two-bedroom, Category 4 in Elkhorn is UNDER CONTRACT. Renter 

decided not to pursue purchase and is vacating. (Liz, Heather) 

Rental lease-up 

- 3 one-bedroom, Category 5s in Ketchum are available (only available until May 1st when they 

transfer over to hotel employee units. 

- 1 one-bedroom Category 4 in Ketchum is available (only available until May 1st when they 

transfer over to hotel employee units. 

- 1 two-bedroom, Category 4 in Ketchum has been offered to BCHA qualified applicant and lease 

was just signed!  

- 2 one-bedroom, Category 3-Local in Ketchum  at Evergreen Apartments are available and once 

repairs/maintenance is completed there will be a 3rd one bedroom available.  

- Offered 1 one-bedroom unit and anticipate offering 1 two-bedroom unit at Evergreen 

Apartments to CoK employees. Anticipate leases and move-ins to occur in the next 6 weeks. 

(Heather, Liz, Daniel) 

- Working with City of Ketchum to get the Evergreen Apartments tenants into BCHA’s system for 

eligibility determination and compliance checks. (Heather, Jacklyn, Daniel) 

 

Sales & Rental Lease Up 

Month 

Monthly Number 
of Deed 

Restricted Units 
Sold 

FY26 to Date 
Number of Deed 
Restricted Units 

Sold 

Monthly Number 
of Rental Units 

Leased Up 

FY26 to Date 
Number of Rental 
Units Leased Up 



October 0 0 0 0 

November 0 0 0 0 

December (1st – 
9th ) 

0 0 1 1 

FY to date 0 0 1 1 

 

 



 BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, November 19th, 2025 10:30 AM 
115 Main Street South, Suite H, Hailey, ID 83333 

 

CALL TO ORDER: By Vice Chair Sarah Seppa (00:07:48)  
 
 
ROLL CALL:  
Keith Perry- Board Chair (via Zoom) 
Daryl Fauth- Treasurer  
Sarah Seppa- Vice Chair   
Jennifer Rangel- Board Member   
Ana Torres- Board Member  
 
ALSO PRESENT:  
Carissa Connelly –Housing Director, BCHA Executive Director  
Heather Nicolai –Housing Operations Manager  
Liz Vargas —BCHA Program Administrator  
Daniel Brown –BCHA Silvercreek Living Property Manager & Program Administrator  
Jacklyn Highfill –Housing Administrative Assistant  
Tripp Hutchinson –City Councilmember, BCHA- Ketchum Liaison  
Brian Parker –Bellevue City Councilmember, BCHA- Bellevue Liaison 
Muffy Davis –Blaine County Commissioner, BCHA- Blaine County Liaison 
 
MOTION TO MOVE TO EXECUTIVE SESSION: (00:00:39) 
MOVER: Keith Perry 
SECONDER: Sarah Seppa 
AYES: Keith Perry, Sarah Seppa, Daryl Fauth 
NAYS: 
RESULT: ADOPTED 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM BCHA BOARD: (00:08:10) 
1. Public Comments submitted online 
2. Public Comments in person- Sage Saurbrey (00:08:34) 
 
MOTION TO MOVE TO EXECUTIVE SESSION: (00:10:48) 
MOVER: Daryl Fauth 
SECONDER: Sarah Seppa 
AYES: Keith Perry, Sarah Seppa, Daryl Fauth, Jenny Rangel, Ana Torres 
NAYS: 
RESULT: ADOPTED  
 

       -RECORDING PAUSED FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION- 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM BCHA LIASONS: Updates from the Liaisons on their jurisdictions 
3. Liaison Reports  

 Muffy Davis (00:13:20) 
              Brian Parker (00:14:16) 
               
       COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE STAFF: (00:15:30) 
       4. Staff Update- Housing Director, Carissa Connelly 
 

 

https://goo.gl/maps/iFX44cqtYTRcxCrY8
https://goo.gl/maps/iFX44cqtYTRcxCrY8


 BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, November 19th, 2025 10:30 AM 
115 Main Street South, Suite H, Hailey, ID 83333 

 

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: (00:17:14) 
5. Approval of the October 15, 2025, BCHA Board Meeting Minutes  
6. Approval of the October 31, 2025, BCHA Special Board Meeting Minutes  
7. Approval of the October 2025 Financial Report  
8. Recommendation to Renew Contract for Services with City of Ketchum- Executive Director, Carissa Connell & 
Operations Manager, Heather Nicolai  
10. Recommendation to Approve Contract for Services with Institute of Applied Conflict Resolution and Mediation- 
Operations Manager, Heather Nicolai 

        
MOTION TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: (00:11:11) 

       MOVER: Daryl Fauth  
       SECONDER: Ana Torres  
       AYES: Keith Perry, Ana Torres, Jennifer Rangel, Sarah Seppa, Daryl Fauth 
       NAYS:  
       RESULT: ADOPTED 
 

NEW BUSINESS:  
11. Recommendation to Approve FY26 Action Plan- Executive Director, Carissa Connelly (00:18:58) 
12. HOA Assistance + Residences at Evergreen + Process Update- Housing Policy & Program Strategist, Rian Rooney 
(00:23:42) 
13. Review & Provide Guidance on Shared Equity Protection Product- Operations Manager, Heather Nicolai 
(01:02:10) 

 
MEETING ADJOURNED (01:20:57) 
MOVER: Jennifer Rangel  
SECONDER: Keith Perry 
AYES: Keith Perry, Ana Torres, Jennifer Rangel, Sarah Seppa, Daryl Fauth 
NAYS:  
RESULT: ADOPTED 

 
 

Respectfully submitted by:                                                                                    Approved by: 
 

_____________________                                                                                     _____________________ 
Carissa Connelly                                                                                                      Keith Perry 
BCHA Executive Director                                                                                        BCHA Chair 

 

https://goo.gl/maps/iFX44cqtYTRcxCrY8
https://goo.gl/maps/iFX44cqtYTRcxCrY8


Financial Reports for period ending November 30, 2025

Prepared on

December 9, 2025



Actual Budget
over 

Budget
% of 

Budget
Income

   4010 Sale of Real Estate - Elkhorn Rental to Ownership 0  0  0  

   4050 City of Ketchum Contributions 200,000  65,983  134,017  303.11%

   4060 Blaine County Contributions 0  25,750  -25,750  0.00%

   4070 CH Admin Fee 0  1,945  -1,945  0.00%

   4100 Rental Income 0  0  0  

      4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income 59,962  63,901  -3,939  93.84%

         4115 Silvercreek - Laundry Income 2,051  1,167  884  175.81%

      Total 4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income $    62,013  $    65,067  -$     3,054  95.31%

      4130 Elkhorn - Rental Income 3,000  1,995  1,005  150.38%

   Total 4100 Rental Income $    65,013  $    67,062  -$     2,049  96.94%

   4300 Grants 1,500  1,667  -167  90.00%

Total Income $  266,513  $  162,407  $  104,106  164.10%

Gross Profit $  266,513  $  162,407  $  104,106  164.10%

Expenses

   7100 Administrative Services

      7110 Financial Services 0  567  -567  0.00%

      7130 Liability Insurance 0  1,218  -1,218  0.00%

      7140 Staff/Board Development 2,760  833  1,926  331.16%

      7150 Subscriptions 0  550  -550  0.00%

   Total 7100 Administrative Services $      2,760  $      3,168  -$        408  87.13%

   7200 Managed Rental Costs 0  0  0  

      7201 Property Management Systems 244  250  -6  97.60%

      7210 Silvercreek - Expenses 0  0  0  

         7211 Silvercreek - Operations 13,693  32,009  -18,316  42.78%

         7212 Silvercreek - Rental Expense 90,498  87,309  3,189  103.65%

      Total 7210 Silvercreek - Expenses $  104,191  $  119,318  -$   15,127  87.32%

      7230 Elkhorn Village Units

         7231 Elkhorn Village HOA Dues 2,128  1,864  264  114.19%

         7232 Elkhorn Village Repair & Maintenance 0  1,090  -1,090  0.00%

      Total 7230 Elkhorn Village Units $      2,128  $      2,954  -$        825  72.06%

   Total 7200 Managed Rental Costs $  106,563  $  122,522  -$   15,958  86.97%

   7400 Contract Labor 0  0  0  

      7410 Admin - Contract Labor 0  0  0  

      7430 Application Review and Placement  - Contract Labor 0  0  0  

      7440 City of Ketchum Staffing Reimbursement 0  0  0  

      7450 Compliance - Contract Labor 0  0  0  

Total

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Budget vs. Actuals: FY26

October - November, 2025



         7455 Legal Fees 13,744  9,250  4,494  148.58%

      Total 7450 Compliance - Contract Labor $    13,744  $      9,250  $      4,494  148.58%

   Total 7400 Contract Labor $    13,744  $      9,250  $      4,494  148.58%

   7500 Office expenses

      7510 Computer & Comm. Expenses 2,112  1,226  886  172.25%

      7520 Postal and Delivery Services 0  52  -52  0.00%

      7530 Furniture & Improvements 0  48  -48  0.00%

      7550 Rent - BCHA Meriwether Office 1,965  1,960  5  100.26%

      7560 Supplies 0  170  -170  0.00%

   Total 7500 Office expenses $      4,077  $      3,455  $         621  117.98%

   7600 Program Expenses

      7610 Applications, Forms, & Data Management 2,575  2,441  134  105.50%

      7630 Data and Analysis 23,922  2,200  21,722  1087.38%

      7640 Mediation 6,167  6,167  0  100.00%

      7650 Lease-up and Sales 0  922  -922  0.00%

      7660 Printing and Reproduction 0  429  -429  0.00%

      7670 Translation & Interpretation 49  750  -701  6.53%

      7680 Public Education & Partnership Engagement 6,238  9,804  -3,566  63.63%

      7690 HOA Dues Assistance 1,251  0  1,251  

      7695 HOA Special Assessment Assistance 1,219  0  1,219  

   Total 7600 Program Expenses $    41,421  $    22,712  $    18,709  182.37%

Total Expenses $  168,565  $  161,107  $      7,458  104.63%

Net Operating Income $    97,948  $      1,300  $    96,648  7533.33%

Net Income $    97,948  $      1,300  $    96,648  7533.33%



Oct - Nov, 
2025

Oct - Nov, 
2024 (PY) Change % Change

Income

   4050 City of Ketchum Contributions 200,000  100,000  100,000  100.00%

   4070 CH Admin Fee 2,094  -2,094  -100.00%

   4100 Rental Income 0  

      4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income 59,962  62,476  -2,514  -4.02%

         4115 Silvercreek - Laundry Income 2,051  1,582  469  29.65%

      Total 4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income $           62,013  $           64,058  -$            2,045  -3.19%

      4130 Elkhorn - Rental Income 3,000  1,500  1,500  100.00%

   Total 4100 Rental Income $           65,013  $           65,558  -$               545  -0.83%

   4300 Grants 1,500  1,500  

   4600 Miscellaneous Income 749  -749  -100.00%

Total Income $         266,513  $         168,401  $           98,112  58.26%

Gross Profit $         266,513  $         168,401  $           98,112  58.26%

Expenses

   7100 Administrative Services 0  

      7110 Financial Services 6,906  -6,906  -100.00%

         7120 Bank Charge 71  -71  -100.00%

      Total 7110 Financial Services $                    0  $             6,978  -$            6,978  -100.00%

      7130 Liability Insurance 3,479  -3,479  -100.00%

      7140 Staff/Board Development 2,760  2,760  

      7150 Subscriptions 245  -245  -100.00%

   Total 7100 Administrative Services $             2,760  $           10,702  -$            7,942  -74.21%

   7200 Managed Rental Costs 0  

      7201 Property Management Systems 244  457  -213  -46.61%

      7210 Silvercreek - Expenses 0  

         7211 Silvercreek - Operations 13,693  33,811  -20,118  -59.50%

         7212 Silvercreek - Rental Expense 90,498  82,500  7,998  9.69%

      Total 7210 Silvercreek - Expenses $         104,191  $         116,311  -$          12,121  -10.42%

      7230 Elkhorn Village Units 0  

         7231 Elkhorn Village HOA Dues 2,128  2,231  -103  -4.60%

         7232 Elkhorn Village Repair & Maintenance 200  -200  -100.00%

      Total 7230 Elkhorn Village Units $             2,128  $             2,431  -$               303  -12.45%

   Total 7200 Managed Rental Costs $         106,563  $         119,200  -$          12,636  -10.60%

   7400 Contract Labor 0  

      7430 Application Review and Placement  - Contract Labor 23,205  -23,205  -100.00%

      7440 City of Ketchum Staffing Reimbursement 58,129  -58,129  -100.00%

      7450 Compliance - Contract Labor 3,160  -3,160  -100.00%

         7455 Legal Fees 13,744  2,170  11,574  533.35%

      Total 7450 Compliance - Contract Labor $           13,744  $             5,330  $             8,414  157.86%

   Total 7400 Contract Labor $           13,744  $           86,664  -$          72,921  -84.14%

   7500 Office expenses 0  

Total

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Profit and Loss YTD Comparison

October - November, 2025



      7510 Computer & Comm. Expenses 2,112  781  1,331  170.42%

      7530 Furniture & Improvements 25  -25  -100.00%

      7550 Rent - BCHA Meriwether Office 1,965  1,885  80  4.22%

      7560 Supplies 86  -86  -100.00%

   Total 7500 Office expenses $             4,077  $             2,777  $             1,300  46.80%

   7600 Program Expenses 0  

      7610 Applications, Forms, & Data Management 2,575  2,070  505  24.40%

      7630 Data and Analysis 23,922  23,922  

      7640 Mediation 6,167  6,167  0  0.00%

      7650 Lease-up and Sales 2,773  -2,773  -100.00%

      7670 Translation & Interpretation 49  49  

      7680 Public Education & Partnership Engagement 6,238  33  6,205  18804.42%

      7690 HOA Dues Assistance 1,251  1,251  

      7695 HOA Special Assessment Assistance 1,219  1,219  

   Total 7600 Program Expenses $           41,421  $           11,043  $           30,378  275.09%

Total Expenses $         168,565  $         230,386  -$          61,821  -26.83%

Net Operating Income $           97,948  -$          61,984  $         159,933  258.02%

Net Income $           97,948  -$          61,984  $         159,933  258.02%



Elkhorn Village Silver Creek Living Total
Income

   4100 Rental Income

      4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income 59,962  59,962  

         4115 Silvercreek - Laundry Income 2,051  2,051  

      Total 4110 Silvercreek - Rental Income $                                     0  $                            62,013  $      62,013  

      4130 Elkhorn - Rental Income 1,500  1,500  

   Total 4100 Rental Income $                              1,500  $                            62,013  $      63,513  

   4300 Grants 1,500  1,500  

Total Income $                              1,500  $                            63,513  $      65,013  

Gross Profit $                              1,500  $                            63,513  $      65,013  

Expenses

   7200 Managed Rental Costs

      7210 Silvercreek - Expenses

         7211 Silvercreek - Operations 13,561  13,561  

         7212 Silvercreek - Rental Expense 46,304  46,304  

      Total 7210 Silvercreek - Expenses $                                     0  $                            59,865  $      59,865  

      7230 Elkhorn Village Units

         7231 Elkhorn Village HOA Dues 2,128  2,128  

      Total 7230 Elkhorn Village Units $                              2,128  $                                     0  $        2,128  

   Total 7200 Managed Rental Costs $                              2,128  $                            59,865  $      61,993  

Total Expenses $                              2,128  $                            59,865  $      61,993  

Net Operating Income -$                                628  $                              3,648  $        3,020  

Net Income -$                                628  $                              3,648  $        3,020  

October - November, 2025
Profit and Loss by Property

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY



As of Nov 30, 
2025

As of Nov 30, 
2024 (PY) Change % Change

ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts

         1100 Cash in Bank 0  0  0  

            1110 DL Evans Checking 215,842  139,943  75,898  54.23%

            1120 Checking US BANK-1848 -142  -142  0  0.00%

         Total 1100 Cash in Bank $         215,699  $         139,801  $           75,898  54.29%

      Total Bank Accounts $         215,699  $         139,801  $           75,898  54.29%

      Accounts Receivable

         1200 Accounts Receivable 1,500  25  1,475  5919.26%

      Total Accounts Receivable $             1,500  $                  25  $             1,475  5919.26%

   Total Current Assets $         217,199  $         139,826  $           77,373  55.34%

TOTAL ASSETS $         217,199  $         139,826  $           77,373  55.34%

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable

            2000 Accounts Payable 48,506  34,790  13,716  39.43%

         Total Accounts Payable $           48,506  $           34,790  $           13,716  39.43%

      Total Current Liabilities $           48,506  $           34,790  $           13,716  39.43%

   Total Liabilities $           48,506  $           34,790  $           13,716  39.43%

   Equity

      3000 Opening Bal Equity -313,390  -313,390  0  0.00%

      3040 Retained Earnings 384,135  480,411  -96,276  -20.04%

      Net Income 97,948  -61,984  159,933  258.02%

   Total Equity $         168,693  $         105,036  $           63,657  60.61%

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $         217,199  $         139,826  $           77,373  55.34%

Total

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet Comparison 

As of November 30, 2025



 
  

BOARD MEETING AGENDA MEMO 
 

 
Meeting Date: 12/17/25 Staff Member: Heather Nicolai 

 
Agenda Item: Recommendation to Adopt January Meeting Schedule 

 
  Recommended Action: 

“I move to adopt the January meeting schedule.” 

   
  Reasons for Recommendation: 

1. Staff are waiting on local jurisdictions to set their 2026 public meeting schedules. 

2. January 2026 meeting needs to be set and the Community Meeting Room at Ketchum City Hall is 
available.  

3. BCHA Board meetings have agenda items that require more discussion and deliberation, which is 
why staff is recommending Board meetings be 2-hours rather than 1.5 hours. 

 
 
Policy Analysis and Background (non-consent items only): 

 

 
Attachments:  

Resolution #2025-22 

   
 
 
 
 

 



Blaine County Housing Authority, 12/12/25, Page 2 of 2 

 
RESOLUTION 2025-22 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
ADOPT THE JANUARY MEETING SCHEDULE.  

 
 
WHEREAS, the January 2026 board meeting of the BCHA Board will be on the third Wednesday of January 2026 
from 10:30 A.M.-12:30 P.M. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-2343(1), any public agency that holds meetings at regular intervals of 
at least once per calendar month scheduled in advance over the course of the year may satisfy this meeting notice 
by giving meeting notices at least once each year of its regular meeting schedule: and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of the Blaine County Housing 
Authority, Blaine County, Idaho, as follows: 
 
The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners adopts the January 2026 BCHA Board meeting 
schedule.  
 
 
 
 [This space left intentionally blank] 
 
DATED this 17th day of December, 2025 
 

 
ATTEST:     BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 
_____________________________    ____________________________________ 
 
Executive Director     Chair 
 
 
 
 



 

Blaine County Housing Authority, 10/26/2025 

  
BOARD MEETING AGENDA MEMO 

 
 
Meeting Date: 12/17/25 Staff Member: Carissa Connelly 

 
Agenda Item: Recommendation to Approve Independent Contractor Agreement with Rian Rooney 

 
  Recommended Action: 

“I move to approve contract with Rian Rooney.” 

   
  Reasons for Recommendation: 

• Rian has been providing services to BCHA through his existing contract with the City of Ketchum. A 
new dedicated contract for BCHA work is recommended. 

• On contract, Rian’s hours can fluctuate as BCHA needs change. 

 
 
Policy Analysis and Background (non-consent items only): 

GOAL 1: Build organizational structure + capacity to address regional housing opportunities + gaps 
ACTION: Maintain contracts for technical services (e.g., grant writer, program development, code 
amendments, etc.) 
Community feedback since 2022 have emphasized the need for BCHA to be a gap filler. Rian has a Master’s 
in Urban Planning from Harvard University and has worked as a Senior Planner in a peer community, 
Jackson / Teton County, Wyoming. He joined the housing team in 2022 and has been a reliable, self-directed 
asset since. He brings a range of skills to BCHA, including data analysis, policy development, grant writing, 
and familiarity with zoning codes. 
 
GOAL 2: Recommend + advocate for policy that promotes community housing 
OBJECTIVE: Identify + support policies to promote community housing supply and access to community 
housing at the local level including: code amendments, projects, programs, funding allocation, etc. 
Rian has proven expertise in supporting BCHA operations, policy, advocacy, and research efforts. He is vital 
to BCHA’s goal of recommending and advocating for policy that promotes housing. He leads outreach 
efforts at the local, state, and federal level. Over the past year, he has met with planners in each Blaine 
County jurisdiction to collaborate on the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing choice and provide 
feedback on Comprehensive Plan updates and development applications. 
 
 
 



Blaine County Housing Authority, 12/11/25, Page 2 of 7 

GOAL 4: Inform, engage, collaborate 
OBJECTIVE: Increase community, stakeholder, and staff's education and engagement on existing housing 
programs and housing topics. 
He also assists with goal 4 in educating the community. For example, he is the primary organizer of the 
December outreach events, including the Housing Partner Meeting, two public presentations with guest 
speakers, and a breakfast session with local government planners. He is BCHA’s project manager for the 
Analysis of Impediments and will be presenting on those findings.  
 
GOAL 5: Steward/preserve + expand portfolio of deed restricted homes 
OBJECTIVE: Continue to steward inventory of existing deed-restricted homes in BCHA inventory, including 
on-going compliance. 
OBJECTIVE: Expand inventory of deed-restricted homes through an acquisition/preservation strategy. 
As the Housing Policy and Program Strategist, Rian problem solves unforeseen stewardship challenges – 
such as unaffordability of HOA dues at the Evergreen condominiums – and is available to develop programs 
or provide feedback to local governments aiming to expand the inventory of community housing. Last year 
he partnered with the County Assessor’s office to provide current maximum sales prices for the entire 
ownership portfolio to ensure fair tax assessments. This will develop into a regular, annual process. 
 
Rian has proven that he is able to operate independently with regular one-on-one check-ins with the 
Housing Director. See the proposed scope of work, attached to the Contract, for the comprehensive 
responsibilities. 
 
Financial Impact: City of Ketchum and Blaine County allocated budget include funding for the FY26 for 
BCHA. 

 
Attachments:  

1. Resolution 2025-15 
2. Independent Contractor Agreement with Rian Rooney 
3. Exhibit A. Scope of Work 

   
  



Blaine County Housing Authority, 12/11/25, Page 3 of 7 

 
RESOLUTION 2025-15 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS APPROVE AN 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

 
 

A. WHEREAS, contractor, Rian Rooney, has the expertise, skills, and capacity to assist with BCHA’s 
responsibilities and fulfill BCHA’s Strategic Plan and annual Housing Action Plan; and 

 
B. WHEREAS, the contractor, Rian Rooney, has been providing effective services to Blaine County Housing 

Authority, via an existing contract with the City of Ketchum, advising and recommending policy, analyzing 
land use and zoning proposals, performing data analysis and producing reports, and assisting with 
general data operations and systems since March 2023; and 

 

C. WHEREAS, the BCHA Executive Director has determined that entering into a contract with Rian Rooney 
to continue to support implementation of the BCHA Strategic Plan and annual Housing Action Plan is a 
necessary and beneficial action warranting the approval and authorization of the BCHA Board;  

 

D. NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of the Blaine County Housing 
Authority, Blaine County, Idaho, as follows: 

Section 1. The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners approves and authorizes the 
Independent Contractor Agreement with Rian Rooney, attached and incorporated herein.  

Section 2. The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners authorizes the BCHA Executive 
Director to manage such contract on behalf of BCHA. 

DATED this    day of  , 2025 

[This space left intentionally blank] 

 

ATTEST:       BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
____________________________________   ____________________________________ 
 
Executive Director       Chair 
 
  



Blaine County Housing Authority, 12/11/25, Page 4 of 7 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT WITH RIAN ROONEY 
FOR SERVICES 

 
This Independent Contractor Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered effective to the ____ of 

_________, 2025, by and between the Blaine County Housing Authority ( “BCHA”), and Rian Rooney 
("Contractor"). 

 
FINDINGS 

 
A. The BCHA is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Idaho. 

B. the BCHA is duly authorized and empowered to enter into such an agreement; 

C. Contractor independently provides certain professional services which may be beneficial and of use for 
the general welfare of the BCHA. 

D. The BCHA finds that it is economical and efficient and that is in the best interests of the BCHA to contract 
with Contractor for certain services as set forth herein (“Services”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties enter into this Agreement according to the following terms and conditions: 
 
1. Description of Services. Please refer to the scope of services as proposed in the proposal submitted with 

this contract. 
 

2. Payment for Services. In exchange for Services, the BCHA shall pay Contractor $105 / hour, not to exceed 
$13,200 annually without additional BCHA approval. Invoices for payment will be submitted monthly and 
payment made by BCHA upon BCHA review and approval within approximately thirty days.  

 
3. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be through the duration of Services, not to exceed the specified 

maximum hours. This term may be renewed or extended upon further written agreement between the 
parties. 
 

4. Independent Contractor. Contractor performs the Services hereunder solely and exclusively as an 
independent contractor.  Contractor is not an employee, servant, agent, partner, or joint venture of the 
BCHA. The BCHA will determine the projects or Services to be done by Contractor, but Contractor will 
determine the legal means by which it accomplishes the work specified by the BCHA.  This Agreement shall 
not be construed to create or establish any employee-employee relationship between the BCHA and 
Contractor or make Contractor eligible for any BCHA employment benefits. Contractor is solely responsible 
for all withholding and payment of all applicable federal, state, and local income or payroll taxes of any kind.    

 
5. Performance and Warranty.  Contractor will provide its own tools and equipment as needed to perform the 

Services.  Contractor warrants that all equipment used to perform this Agreement will function safely, 
properly, and efficiently.  Contractor warrants that all services will be timely performed in a safe, 
professional, and workmanlike manner. 

 
6. Indemnification.  Contractor releases, holds harmless, and agrees to indemnify BCHA from and against all 

claims, suits, damages (including, without limitation, damages to persons and property including deaths, and 
all tax responsibilities), costs, losses, and expenses, in any manner related to or arising from the acts or 
omissions of Contractor, its managers, members, directors, officers, shareholders, agents, and employees. 



Blaine County Housing Authority, 12/11/25, Page 5 of 7 

 
7. Licensing.  Contractor represents that Contractor possesses the requisite skill, knowledge, and experience 

necessary to perform the Services.  Contractor represents it has or agrees to obtain and maintain all 
necessary registrations, licenses, and insurance as may be required by the State of Idaho for the 
performance of the Services under this Agreement. 

 
8. Insurance.  Contractor is not covered by the BCHA’s liability insurance policy.  Contractor shall carry and 

maintain their own liability insurance. 
 

Proof of said insurance shall be provided to BCHA.  
 
9. Notice.  All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows: 

 
BCHA:      CONTRACTOR: 
Blaine County Housing Authority  Rian Rooney   

 Attn: Housing Director    427 St. Johns Place 
 P.O. Box 4045   Apartment 3B     
 Ketchum, ID 83340    Brooklyn, NY 11238 
 
10. Compliance with  Laws/Public Records. Contractor, its managers, members, directors, officers, 

shareholders, agents, and employees shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules, and 
ordinances. This Agreement does not relieve Contractor of any obligation or responsibility imposed upon 
Contractor by law. Without limitation, Contractor hereby acknowledges that all writings and documents, 
including without limitation email, containing information relating to the conduct or administration of the 
public’s business prepared by Contractor for BCHA regardless of physical form or characteristics may be 
public records pursuant to the Idaho Public Records Act.  Contractor further acknowledges that, subject to 
certain limitations, the public may examine and take a copy of all such public writings and records.  
Accordingly, Contractor shall maintain such writings and records in such a manner that they may readily 
identified, retrieved and made available for such inspection and copying.  Should Contractor wish to claim an 
exemption to disclosure on any record, Contractor shall identify such in advance and assume all costs of 
defense on any associated legal action to defend such claimed exemption from disclosure. 
 

11. Non-Assignment. Contractor hereby acknowledges that BCHA has agreed to enter this Agreement based in 
part on Contractor’s unique skills and reputation for professional work.  Accordingly, Contractor may not 
assign, subcontract, or transfer in any manner this Agreement or any of Contractor’s right, title or interest in 
or to this Agreement without the prior written consent of BCHA. 

 
12. Amendments.  This Agreement may only be changed, modified, or amended in writing executed by all 

parties. 
 

13. Non-Waiver.  The failure of either party to exercise any of its rights under this Agreement at any time does not 
constitute a breach of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such rights or a waiver of 
any subsequent breach. 

 
14. Headings. The headings in the Agreement are inserted for convenience and identification only and are in no 

way intended to describe, interpret, define, or limit the scope, extent, or intent of this Agreement or any 
provision hereof. 

 



Blaine County Housing Authority, 12/11/25, Page 6 of 7 

15. Attorney Fees and Costs. In the event that either party hereto is required to retain the services of an attorney 
to enforce any of its rights hereunder, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the prevailing party all reasonable 
costs and attorney fees incurred in such enforcement, whether or not litigation is commenced and including 
reasonable costs and attorney fees on appeal.  Prior to any litigation, the parties agree to first attend 
mediation as a means of resolving any disputes. 

 
16. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Idaho.  Venue shall be in the 

Fifth Judicial District, Blaine County, Idaho.   
 

17. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties respecting the matters 
herein set forth and supersedes any and all prior Agreements between the parties hereto respecting such 
matter. 

 
18. Severability.  If any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, such part shall be 

considered as stricken and the rest of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and so as to 
preserve the agreement and intent to the fullest possible extent. 

 
19. Execution and Signatures. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or more counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

 
20. Authority. The parties executing this Agreement warrant, state, acknowledge, and affirm that they have the 

authority to sign the same and to bind themselves to the terms contained herein. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Agreement. 
 
BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  RIAN ROONEY, CONTRACTOR 
      
_______________________    ___________________________ 
Keith Perry, Board Chair      
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
[Name] 
Blaine County Housing Authority Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Blaine County Housing Authority, 12/11/25, Page 7 of 7 

EXHIBIT A 
Rian Rooney, Independent Contractor 

Scope of Services | November 2025 
 

The Housing Policy and Program Strategist will assist in implementing the Blaine County Housing 
Authority Strategic Plan and Annual Action Plan. Pay is $105 per hour, not to exceed $13,200 or 125.7 
hours.  

 

The Housing Strategist will be responsible for the following: 

• Review and assist with updates to program policies, deed covenants, resale calculations, 
appreciation, and administrative processes. 

• Lead process and policy development for homeownership assistance funds and long-term 
solutions for  

• Analysis of annual income limits and rent maximums. 

• Oversee annual calculations of sale prices for ownership homes for County assessor. 

• Review planning applications and provide assistance, recommendations, and/or written/verbal 
commentary on behalf of BCHA. 

• Train staff on preparation of deed covenants and legal documents and associated processes. 
Continue to provide administrative assistance for portfolio stewardship. 

• Continue to assist with transition to new application and reporting software. Build and pull 
reports, troubleshoot errors, liaise with consulting engineer, and continue to educate and assist 
Operations Manager and Program Administrators in use of programs. 

• Assist in updating the annual Action Plan. 

• Analyze quantitative and qualitative data as needed for production of reports, outreach and 
research materials.  

• Grant writing for relevant funding opportunities.  

• Other tasks, as needed. 

 



 
  

BOARD MEETING AGENDA MEMO 
 

 
Meeting Date: December 17, 2025 Staff Member: Carissa Connelly 

 
Agenda Item: Recommendation to adopt Amendment to Silvercreek Living Masterlease 

 
  Recommended Action: 

“I move to adopt and execute the 1st Amendment to BCHA’s Masterlease of Silvercreek Living” 

   
Policy Analysis and Background (non-consent items only): 

 
GOAL 3: Expand, coordinate + improve services to create housing stability 
OBJECTIVE 3: Address the immediate needs of unhoused and people at risk of displacement 
ACTION: Provide displacement support/housing options for families at risk of experiencing homelessness 
 
When BCHA decided to masterlease Silvercreek Living, BCHA recognized and accepted the revenue 
volatility when working with the county’s most vulnerable residents. Operating transitional housing or 
shelters will rarely, if ever, break even. This gap is typically filled by public funding and donations. To date, 
neither BCHA nor BCHF have actively attempted to seek donations – in large part due to the continued 
misperception of the tenant base and recognition that many people are hesitant to give public entities 
money.  
 
Dry winters and long slack seasons, the political climate, and positive outcomes of tenants transitioning to 
permanent housing all impact the ability of tenants to pay and continue leasing at Silvercreek. As such, the 
operational loss at Silvercreek – while improved with changes in rent and efficiencies – continues to be 
greater than anticipated and as such, there is a risk of the City of Ketchum pulling their Letter of Credit that 
guarantees rent in the event of default (non-payment of rent on the master lease). In response, BCHA and 
the owners were able to renegotiate the rent rate on the master lease and commitments on the letter of 
credit in exchange for greater flexibility on early termination by the owner. 
 

 Current Lease Proposed Amendment 
Rent rate $530k in 2026 + 3.5% 

annual escalation 
Total savings of $253,088 over the remainder of the lease 

term. New rates: $430k in 2026 (discount of $100k), 
$465k in 2027 ($85k discount), $499k in 2028 ($69k 

discount) 
Letter of Credit $500k for lease duration $450k in year 4, $350k in year 5 

Early termination No early termination, 
right of first offer  

Added 120-day notice from owner to terminate which 
cancels right of first offer 



Blaine County Housing Authority, 12/12/25, Page 2 of 3 

Staff recommend adopting the proposed amendment to the masterlease. 

Attachments: 
• Resolution 2025-20
• Silvercreek Living Masterlease Amendment 1
• Silvercreek Living Masterlease



Blaine County Housing Authority, 12/12/25, Page 3 of 3 

RESOLUTION No. 2025-20 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE SILVERCREEK LIVING MASTERLEASE. 

WHEREAS, BCHA’s strategic plan includes the goal to “Expand, Coordinate + Improve Services to Create 
Housing Stability” and the action to “Address the immediate needs of unhoused and people at risk of 
displacement;” and 

WHEREAS, Silvercreek Living is an ideal site for transitional, workforce housing, with common kitchens, 
laundry rooms, 32-38 rooms, and office space; and 

WHEREAS, transitional housing for vulnerable populations has unreliable rental revenue, and Silvercreek has 
experienced greater than anticipated losses; and 

WHEREAS, the Owner of Silvercreek Living has agreed to reduce the rent rate on the master lease and 
commitments on the letter of credit in exchange for greater flexibility on early termination by the owner; and 

WHEREAS, such an amendment ensures a continued letter of credit as of today. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of the Blaine County Housing Authority, 
Blaine County, Idaho, as follows: 

Section 1. The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners approves adopting the 1st 
amendment to the Silvercreek Living masterlease. 

Section 2. The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners authorizes the Board Chair and 
Executive Director to execute the 1st amendment to the Silvercreek Living masterlease. 

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 ____________________________________ 

DATED this 17th day of November, 

2025 ATTEST:  

_____________________________ 
Executive Director   Chair 



BCHA - First Amendment 1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT 
(Blaine County Housing Authority) 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) 
is dated as of December 17, 2025 (the “Amendment Date”), and is entered into by and 
between WOOD RIVER LLC, a Washington limited liability company (“Lessor”), and 
BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY, an independent public body corporate and 
politic duly created by Blaine County, Idaho, and existing pursuant to the laws of the 
State of Idaho (“Lessee”) 

RECITALS 

A. Lessor and Lessee entered into that certain Master Lease Agreement dated November 30,
2023 (the “Lease”), pursuant to which Lessee leases from Lessor that certain Property located at
31 East McKercher Blvd, Hailey, Idaho, as more particularly set forth in the Lease.

B. Lessor and Lessee desire to amend the Lease upon and subject to the terms and conditions
set forth below in this Amendment.

AGREEMENT 

In furtherance of the Recitals set forth above, which are incorporated herein by reference, 
and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth below and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties acknowledge and 
agree to the following: 

1. Capitalized Terms. All capitalized terms used in this Amendment have the same meaning
as is given such terms in the Lease unless expressly superseded by the terms of this Amendment.

2. Confirmation of Dates. Lessor and Lessee each acknowledge and agree that (i) the
Commencement Date under the Lease is January 15, 2024, and (ii) the Expiration Date is
January 14, 2029.

3. Monthly Rent. Commencing as of January 1, 2026, Lessee shall pay Rent as follows:

Period Monthly Rent Annual Rent 

January 1, 2026 – December 
31, 2026 

$35,854.67 $430,256.00 

January 1, 2027 – December 
31, 2027 

$38,750.00 $465,000.00 

January 1, 2028 – December 
31, 2028 

$41,562.50 $498,750.00 



BCHA - First Amendment 2 

January 1, 2029 – January 14, 
2029 

$41,562.50 (prorated based 
on a 31 day month). 

N/A 

4. Letter of Credit. The amount of the Letter of Credit Amount shall be reduced on an
ongoing basis pursuant to the following schedule: (i) on January 1, 2027 the Letter of Credit
Amount shall be reduced to $450,000.00, and (ii) on January 1, 2028 the Letter of Credit Amount
shall be reduced to $350,000.00 (each, a “LOC Reduction”). For purposes of clarification,
notwithstanding any LOC Reduction, the Letter of Credit shall otherwise be strictly be provided
in conformance with the provisions of Section 5 of the Lease..

5. Early Termination. Upon not less than 120 days advanced notice to Lessee (a
“Termination Notice”), Lessor may terminate the Lease in its entirety (a “Full Termination”), or
may terminate Lessee’s right to either of the Buildings (a “Partial Termination”). In the event of
a Partial Termination, Lessor will provide Lessee with an amendment to the Lease that sets forth
which of the Buildings is to be removed from the Lease, and include in such amendment a diagram
and description of the portion of the Property that will remain in the Lease (the “Remainder
Premises”). With respect to the Remainder Premises, all provisions of the Lease will remain in
effect, except that Rent will be reduced to fifty percent (50%) of the rent that would then be due
under the rent schedule as originally documented in the Lease (i.e.: prior to this Amendment), the
Letter of Credit shall be reduced by 50%, and the other provisions of the Lease that would logically
need to be revised due to such Partial Termination will be modified accordingly to reflect the size
of the Remainder Premises, as reasonably determined by Lessor. With respect to either a Full
Termination or Partial Termination, Lessee will be solely responsible for delivering the portion of
the Premises that is being terminated in the condition required by the Lease as if the Lease
terminated naturally on Expiration Date; provided that Lessee shall cause all tenant leases to be
terminated as of the termination effective date set forth in the Termination Notice (the
“Termination Effective Date”), and to cause each tenant to have vacated no later than the
Termination Effective Date. The foregoing notwithstanding, Landlord agrees to work in good
faith with Tenant, and the third party purchaser of the building(s) to select a Termination Effective
Date that provides ample notice and the least disruption to tenants as practicable.

6. Representations. Each party represents to the other that it has the full right and authority
to bind itself without the consent or approval of any other person or entity and that it has full
power, capacity, authority, and legal right to execute and deliver this Amendment and to perform
all of its obligations hereunder.

7. Ratification; Conflicts. Except as expressly provided in this Amendment, all provisions
of the Lease remain in full force and effect, and Lessor and Lessee hereby ratify and confirm each
and every provision thereof. In the event of any conflict between this Amendment and the Lease,
this Amendment will control.

8. Counterparts; Electronic Signatures. Lessor or Lessee may deliver executed signature
pages to this Amendment by electronic means to the other party, and the electronic copy will be



BCHA - First Amendment 3 

deemed to be effective as an original. This Amendment may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original and all of which counterparts together will 
constitute one agreement with the same effect as if the parties had signed the same signature page. 

9. Incorporation by Reference; Entire Agreement. This Amendment and any attached
addenda and exhibits are incorporated into and made a part of the Lease by this reference, and all
references to the Lease hereafter include this Amendment. This Amendment constitutes the
complete agreement of Lessor and Lessee with respect to the subject matter hereof.

[Signature Page Follows] 



Lessee and Lessor have executed this Amendment as of the Amendment Date. 

LESSOR: 

WOOD RIVER LLC, 
a Washington limited liability company 

By: BearRock Investments LLC, 
A Washington limited liability company 

Its: Member/Manager 

By:  
David Rothrock, Member/Manager 

By:  
Douglas Barrett, Member/Manager 

LESSEE: 

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY, 
an independent public body corporate and politic 

By: 
     Keith Perry, Board of Commissioners Chair 

By: 
     Carissa Connelly, Director 

–BCHA - First Amendment



MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT 

DATED November 30, 2023 

(the “Effective Date”) 

BY AND BETWEEN 

WOOD RIVER LLC 

AS "LESSOR" 

AND 

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSE AUTHORITY 

AS "LESSEE"

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



2 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

1. BASIC TERMS…. .......................................................................................................................3 
2. PREMISES. ..................................................................................................................................4 
3. TERM; EXTENSION OPTION. ..................................................................................................5 
4. RENT. ...........................................................................................................................................5 
5. LETTER OF CREDIT.. ................................................................................................................6 

6. USES. ............................................................................................................................................7 
7. OPERATING COSTS. .................................................................................................................8 
8. SERVICES AND UTILITIES. .....................................................................................................8 

9. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE. .............................................................................................9 
10. ALTERATIONS. ........................................................................................................................10 
11. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION. ...............................................................................................10 

12. CONDEMNATION. ...................................................................................................................11 
13. HAZARDOUS WASTE. ............................................................................................................11 
14. LESSEE RESPONSIBILITY. ....................................................................................................12 

15. ASSIGNMENT. ..........................................................................................................................12 
16. EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. ............................................................................13 

17. ACCESS. ....................................................................................................................................14 
18. SIGNAGE. ..................................................................................................................................14 
19. LIENS AND INSOLVENCY. ....................................................................................................14 

20. REMOVAL OF PROPERTY; LESSOR'S LIEN. ......................................................................14 

21. NON-WAIVER...........................................................................................................................15 
22.  HOLDOVER...............................................................................................................................15 
23. NOTICES. ...................................................................................................................................15 

24. COSTS AND ATTORNEYS' FEES. ..........................................................................................16 
25. LESSOR'S LIABILITY. .............................................................................................................16 

26. SUBORDINATION; ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE. ...................................................................16 
27. TRANSFER OF LESSOR'S INTEREST. ..................................................................................17 
28. RIGHT OF FIRST OFFER; OPTION TO PURCHASE. ...........................................................17 
29. PARKING. ..................................................................................................................................17 

30. GENERAL PROVISIONS. ........................................................................................................18 
 

EXHIBIT A – Legal Description of Land 

EXHIBIT B -  Housing Guidelines 

EXHIBIT C – Premises 

EXHIBIT D – Form of Assignment and Assumption of Existing Tenant Leases 

EXHIBIT E -  Form of Letter of Credit 

   

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



3 

MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS MASTER LEASE (“Lease”) dated for reference purposes as of the Effective Date, is made by and 

between WOOD RIVER LLC, a Washington limited liability company ("Lessor"), and BLAINE 

COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY, an independent public body created by Blaine County, Idaho 

("Lessee").  

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, Lessor is under contract to purchase the Property (defined below) contemplated in 

this Lease. 

 

 WHEREAS, Lessor expects that closing of the transaction (“Closing”) on the Property will 

occur on or about December 15, 2023. 

 

 WHEREAS, Lessee is a  housing authority wherein a key element of their mission is to 

strengthen and manage affordable workforce and transitional housing in Blaine County, Idaho. 

 

 WHEREAS, following Closing it is the intention of the parties that Lessee will be responsible 

for the overall management and control of the Property, which will include, without limitation, entering 

into and managing residential leases and assuming control of the day-to-day operations and 

maintenance of the Property, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease.       

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other consideration set forth 

herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged by both parties, and the mutual promises contained herein, intending to be legally 

bound, agrees as follow.   

AGREEMENT 

1. BASIC TERMS.   The following basic terms apply to the Lease. 

(a) Land.  The “Land” consists of the real property legally described in Exhibit A attached 

hereto. 

(b) Buildings.  The “Buildings” consist of those improvements located on the Land, having 

an address of 31 East McKercher Blvd, Hailey, Idaho. 

 

(c) Premises.  The “Premises” shall consist of the Buildings and Land as generally shown in 

Exhibit C attached hereto, which may also be referred to herein as the “Property”.    

 

(d) Agreed Floor Area of Buildings.  23,144 square feet. 

(e) Lessee's Percentage.  100% of the Premises. 

 

(f) Lease Dates and Term.  The term of this Lease shall be for five (5) years (the “Lease Term” 

or "Term"), commencing on the later of (i) the first day business day that follows Closing, 

and (ii) January 15, 2024 (the "Commencement Date"), and expiring at the end of the 

sixtieth (60th) month following the Commencement Date (the “Expiration Date”). The 

parties agree that if the Commencement Date does not occur by January 30, 2024 this Lease 

will automatically terminate and be of no further effect to either Lessee or Lessor. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



4 

(g) Rent.  The monthly Rent for the first twelve months of this Lease shall be Forty-One 

Thousand Two Hundred Fifty and 00/100 Dollars ($41,250.00) (the “Monthly Rent”) to 

be paid by Lessee under this Lease as follows:  

The Monthly Rent and all other charges due under the Lease (collectively “Rent”) shall 

be payable each month in advance on or before the first day of each month, beginning 

on the Commencement Date, without offset or deduction to the address in Section 1(k) 

below, or such other place designated by Lessor, including payment via automated 

clearing house (“ACH”).    During the Term of the Lease and any extensions thereof, the 

Monthly Rent will be subject to an annual adjustment beginning on the first full month 

following the twelve (12) month anniversary of the Commencement Date, and on each 

subsequent twelve (12) month anniversary thereafter.  The amount of the adjustment each 

year shall be three and one-half percent (3.5%).  Rent for any partial months shall be 

prorated based on the number of days of such partial month.   

(h) Security Deposit.  None. 

(i) Permitted Uses.  Lessee shall use the Premises for the purposes of providing and managing 

housing via sublease agreements per Lessee’s Community Housing Guidelines published 

on Lessee’s website, as may be updated from time to time by Lessee (“Housing 

Guidelines”) and attached hereto as Exhibit B.  At a minimum, all subtenants shall meet 

the qualifications to rent community housing as set forth in Section 2 of the Housing 

Guidelines.  Specifically prohibited uses include permanent supportive housing and 

drug/alcohol rehabilitation clinics/shelters.  Lessee’s use of the Premises shall, at all times, 

be in compliance with applicable legal requirements, including, without limitation, 

maximum legal residential occupancy limitations, and for no other purposes unless 

approved by Lessor, such approval to be in Lessor’s sole but reasonable discretion.   

(j) Brokers.  None. 

(k) Lessor's Address.   

Wood River LLC 

c/o BearRock Investments LLC 

Attn: Doug Barrett and David Rothrock 

232 7th Avenue North, Suite 100 

Seattle, WA 98109 

Email: Doug@mwaseattle.com; David@mwaseattle.com 

 (l) Lessee's Address.   

 Blaine County Housing Authority 

 111 North 1st Avenue, Suite 2J 

 Hailey, Idaho 83333 

 info@bcoha.org 

 

(m) Extension Option. Lessee may extend the Term as set forth in Section 3 below. 

(n) Letter of Credit Amount.  $500,000.00 (see Section 5)  

2. PREMISES.   

2.1 Lease of Premises.  Lessor does hereby lease to Lessee, and Lessee does hereby lease 

from Lessor, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease, the Premises in Section l(c) hereof.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B

mailto:Doug@mwaseattle.com
mailto:info@bcoha.org


5 

Lessee represents and warrants that it agrees with the Agreed Floor Area of the Buildings as specified in 

Section 1(d).     

2.2 Acceptance of Premises.  As of the Commencement Date, Lessee acknowledges that it 

has examined the Premises and accepts the Premises in their present condition, "as-is, where-is.”  Neither 

Lessor nor its agents have made any representations or warranties with respect to the Premises, except as 

expressly set forth herein, and Lessee expressly acknowledges that it has not entered into this Lease in 

reliance upon any representation, warranty, agreement or understanding, either oral or written, which is 

not specifically set forth herein.   

 

2.3 Lessor’s Work.  Lessee acknowledges that Lessor has not agreed to and is not obligated 

to make any improvements or alterations to the Premises except as specifically set forth herein. 

 

2.4 Existing Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment.  The parties acknowledge that as of the 

Effective Date the Premises consists of numerous items of furniture, fixtures, and equipment (collectively 

“Existing FF&E”).  Lessee and any tenants subject to a Rental Agreement (defined below) may have use 

of the Existing FF&E during the Lease Term.  Maintenance, repair, and replacement of the Existing 

FF&E shall be controlled by Section 9.2 herein. 

 

2.5 Existing Tenants.  The parties acknowledge and agree that as of the Commencement Date 

the Premises are occupied by tenants under existing tenant lease agreements (“Existing Tenant 

Agreements”).  On or prior to the Commencement Date the Existing Tenant Agreements will be assigned 

to Lessee pursuant to an assignment and assumption agreement dated as of the Commencement Date, the 

form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D.     

 

3. TERM; EXCLUSIVE TERM EXTENSION NEGOTIATION PERIOD.   

3.1 Term. The Lease Term shall be for the period stated in Section 1(f) hereof, and shall 

commence on the Commencement Date specified in Section 1(f).  Neither Lessor nor any agent or 

employee of Lessor shall be liable for any damage or loss due to Lessor's inability or failure to deliver 

possession of the Premises to Lessee as provided herein.   

3.2 Exclusive Term Extension Negotiation Period.  It is Lessor’s desire to have Lessee as 

a long term tenant for the Premises.  Accordingly, Lessee may provide notice (the “Extension Notice”) 

of its desire to extend the Lease Term, such Extension Notice to be delivered to Lessor no later than 

thirty-six (36) full months following the Commencement Date (the “Extension Notice Deadline”).  

Following delivery of the Extension Notice Lessor agrees to negotiate exclusively with Lessee in good 

faith for thirty (30) days with respect to the rental amount, extension term, and any other material 

business or legal terms or condition for such requested extension.  In the event that the parties agree 

on the foregoing extension terms during such thirty (30) day period, the parties will execute an 

amendment to this Lease memorializing such agreement.    

4. RENT. 

4.1 Monthly Rent.  Lessee shall pay Lessor the Monthly Rent stated in Section 1(g) hereof 

and all other Rent due hereunder without demand, deduction or offset, payable in lawful money of the 

United States in advance on or before the day specified in Section 1(g) to Lessor at the offices of Lessor 

specified in Section 1(k), or to such other party or at such other place as Lessor may hereafter from time 

to time designate in writing. The obligations of Lessee to pay Rent to Lessor and the obligations of Lessor 

under this Lease are independent obligations. The term “Rent” shall mean the Monthly Rent and all other 

amounts owing by Lessee to Lessor under this Lease.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



6 

4.2 Interest; Late Charges.  Any Rent payable by Lessee to Lessor which shall not be paid 

upon the due date thereof shall bear interest at a rate equal to twelve percent (12%) per annum calculated 

from the date of delinquency to the date of payment. If any such installment or other payment of Rent is 

not received within five (5) days from the due date, Lessee shall pay to Lessor a late charge equal to five 

percent (5%) of the amount so delinquent, which late charges shall be liquidated damages (and not a 

penalty) to compensate Lessor for the costs of handling such delinquency, the parties agreeing that actual 

damages would be inconvenient, uncertain, and difficult to ascertain. Such interest and late charges shall 

be deemed additional rent due upon demand, and Lessor shall have rights with respect to such non-

payment as it has with respect to any other non-payment of Rent hereunder. Lessor shall provide an 

alternative way to receive Rent payments (such as direct deposit into Lessor’s bank account) in case of 

Lessor’s inability to certify (offer a signed receipt) timely payments. 

 

4.3. Discounted Rent.  For valuable consideration, which both parties acknowledge, during 

the first six (6) months of the Lease Term following the Commencement Date, and provided no Event of 

Default exists by Lessee, Monthly Rent will be reduced by fifty percent (50%).   

 

5. LETTER OF CREDIT.    

 

 Concurrent with the execution of this Lease, as security for the performance by Lessee of 

Lessee's obligations hereunder, Lessee shall cause to be delivered to Lessor an irrevocable standby letter 

of credit (the "Letter of Credit") in the amount set forth in the Basic Terms (the "Letter of Credit Amount"), 

naming Lessor as beneficiary.  Due to joint exercise of powers and shared interest and authority to pursue 

the public purposes of this Agreement, the Letter of Credit shall initially be issued by the City of Ketchum, 

a municipal corporation of the State of Idaho (the “City”), and have an expiration date not earlier than one 

(1) year and be automatically renewable for  additional one (1) year periods unless notice of non-renewal 

or non-appropriation is given by the City to Lessor and Lessee not later than sixty (60) days prior to the 

expiration thereof (a “Termination Notice”). The Letter of Credit shall provide that in the event of a Lessee 

default the Lessor may make partial and multiple draws thereunder, up to the Letter of Credit Amount.   In 

addition, the Letter of Credit shall provide that, in the event of Lessor’s assignment or other transfer of its 

interest in this Lease, the Letter of Credit shall be freely transferable by Lessor to such transferee, without 

charge and without recourse, to the assignee or transferee of such interest with confirmation of the same to 

Lessor and such assignee or transferee.  The Letter of Credit shall provide for payment to Lessor upon the 

issuer's receipt of a written request from Lessor together with Lessor’s certificate certifying that Lessor is 

entitled to draw upon the Letter of Credit, and shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as 

Exhibit E.  In the event of a Lessee default, Lessor, or its then authorized representatives, shall have the 

right to draw down an amount up to the face amount of the Letter of Credit and hold the funds drawn in 

cash without obligation for interest thereon as the security for the performance of Lessee’s obligations under 

this Lease.  Lessor and Lessee acknowledge and agree that in no event or circumstance shall the Letter of 

Credit, any renewal or substitute therefor or any proceeds thereof be deemed to be or treated as a "security 

deposit" under any law applicable to security deposits in the commercial or residential lease context. 

In the event of a Termination Notice as contemplated above, is it agreed and understood that Lessee 

shall be solely responsible for providing a replacement Letter of Credit (“Replacement Letter of Credit”) 

with a qualified entity, as reasonably determined by Lessee and with reasonable consent by Lessor, on or 

before the date that is five (5) business days prior to the termination effective date set forth in the 

Termination Notice (the “Outside Replacement Letter of Credit Date”).  It is agreed and understood that a 

failure of Lessee to provide a Replacement Letter of Credit by the Outside Replacement Letter of Credit 

Date shall constitute an uncurable Lessee default under the Lease.   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



7 

6. USES.   

The Premises are to be used only for the Permitted Uses specified in Section 1(i) hereof and for 

no other business or purpose.   

 

6.1 Generally.  Lessee shall not use, occupy, or permit the use or occupancy of the Premises 

for any purpose which is illegal, patently dangerous or permit anything to be done which is prohibited by 

or which shall in any way conflict with any law, statute, ordinance, or governmental rule, regulation or 

covenants, conditions and restrictions affecting the Premises now or hereinafter in force.  Lessee shall not 

commit or allow to be committed any waste upon the Premises, or any public or private nuisance or other 

act or thing which disturbs the quiet enjoyment of any others, including any tenants in the Buildings.  

Lessee shall comply with all laws relating to the Premises, and shall not permit any activities to occur on 

at the Premises that would unreasonably effect the safety, use, and cleanliness of the Premises and  the 

preservation of good order therein.  With respect to any tenant subleases executed by Lessee as 

sublandlord, Lessee will follow its standard screening requirements, and Lessee agrees it will follow its 

qualification process as laid out in the Housing Guidelines, as may be updated by Lessee.  As stated in 

Section 1(i), Lessee is specifically prohibited from using any portion of the Premises as permanent 

supportive housing or drug/alcohol rehabilitation facility without the prior written consent of Landlord, 

although residents coming out of homelessness who otherwise qualify for housing under the Housing 

Guidelines may be residents in the Premises.  Lessee acknowledges that neither Lessor nor any agent of 

Lessor has made any representation or warranty with respect to the Premises or the zoning of the same, or with 

respect to the suitability of the Premises for the conduct of Lessee's business, nor has Lessor agreed to undertake 

any modification, alteration or improvement to the Premises except as specifically set forth herein.  Lessee, as 

its sole cost and expense, shall promptly comply with all laws, statutes, ordinances, and governmental rules, 

regulations, or requirements now in force or which may hereafter become in force, of federal, state, county, 

and municipal authorities or other similar body now or hereafter constituted, and with any occupancy 

certificate issued pursuant to any law by any public officer or officers, which impose any duty upon Lessor 

or Lessee insofar as any thereof relate to or affect the condition, use, alteration, or occupancy of the 

Premises associated with Lessee’s use.  Lessee shall further be responsible for the cost of any alterations or 

modifications to the Premises that are required due to Lessee’s use of the Premises, subject to approval by 

Lessor as contemplated herein.  Lessee is solely responsible for ensuring that the Premises comply with any 

and all governmental regulations applicable to Lessee's conduct of business on the Premises, and for any 

alterations or improvements that may be required by such regulations, now existing or hereafter adopted.  

 

6.2 No Obstructions.  Lessee shall not obstruct areas outside of, on the sidewalks adjacent 

to the Premises with any item, and/or boxes, trash or other debris. If Lessee fails to comply with the 

preceding sentence, Lessor may at its option, remove and store or dispose of any such property or 

material without liability for loss thereof or damage thereto, such storage or disposal to be for the 

account of Lessee and at the expense of Lessee, which amounts shall be deemed additional rent 

hereunder.  

 

6.3 Garbage.  Lessee will not place or maintain any garbage, trash, rubbish, or any other 

refuse in any area on the exterior of the Premises, except in secured bins and in designated areas.   

 

6.4 Smoking.  Lessee acknowledges that smoking is not permitted within twenty-five (25) 

feet of any Building entrances, exits, windows or ventilation intakes.  In addition, Lessee agrees to comply 

with any applicable laws, rules, or regulations related to smoking, which may be more restrictive than the 

preceding sentence, and also agrees to ensure that all residents occupying the Premises comply with all 

rules and regulations set forth in this Section 6.4.  

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



8 

6.5 Lessor's Rules and Regulations.  Lessee agrees to comply with any reasonable rules or 

regulations created by Lessor with respect to the Premises (“Rules”); provided that prior to 

implementing such Rules, Lessor shall send a draft of the proposed Rules to Lessee for Lessee’s review 

and comment and the parties shall work together in good faith for a period not to exceed  ten (10) 

business days to finalize such Rules.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessor shall be the final decision 

maker on any Rules; provided that no Rules may unreasonably frustrate the purposes of the Lease or 

conflict with any express provision of this Lease, including, without limitation, the Permitted Uses. 

 

7. OPERATING COSTS.   

 

Lessee acknowledges that in addition to Monthly Rent, Lessee is responsible for directly 

payment of all costs and expenses relating to the Premises (“Operating Costs”). Operating Costs 

includes, without limitation: insurance, utilities, taxes, and all other impositions, taxes, liens, charges 

or expenses of any nature whatsoever in connection with the operation and management of the Premises 

by Lessee. Lessee acknowledges that it will be solely responsible for the payment of Operating Costs as 

follows: 

 

7.1 Lessee's Personal Property Taxes.  Lessee shall pay prior to delinquency all personal 

property taxes with respect to all personal property of Lessee and shall provide promptly upon request 

of Lessor written proof of such payment. 

7.2 Property Taxes.  During the Lease Term, as may be extended, to the extent property or 

other Ad Valorem taxes are assessed and owing against the Landlord and Buildings, Lessee shall pay 

such taxes when due (or reimburse Lessor).  The parties specifically acknowledge that Lessee is only 

responsible for property or other Ad Valorem taxes (if any) which are assessed during the Lease Term, 

as may be extended.     

 

7.3 Insurance.  Lessee shall pay, procure, and/or reimburse Lessor for the insurance policies 

required under Section 14.2. 

 

7.4 Property Management.  Lessee shall be responsible for the payment and management of 

any property manager hired or retained by Lessee to manage all or any portion of the Premises.    

 

7.5 Vendor Agreements.  Lessee is solely responsible for the hiring and management of all 

vendors or other contractors regarding performance of all services required to be performed at the Premises 

associated with Lessee’s use including, without limitation, janitorial services, HVAC service, security 

services, pest control, snow and ice removal, roof and gutter maintenance, etc.        

 

7.6 Records. Lessee shall keep accurate records showing in reasonable detail all Operating 

Expenses incurred and paid by Lessee.  These records shall, upon at least thirty (30) days' request, be made 

available for inspection by Lessor. 

 

8. SERVICES AND UTILITIES. 

Lessee shall be responsible for the costs of all services performed or rendered at the Premises 

as well as the cost of all utilities used in the Premises, including but not limited to electricity, gas, 

water, sewer, internet, and telephone. Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee for any loss, injury or damage 

to property caused by or resulting from any variation, interruption or failure of such services due to r 

Lessee’s failure to make any repairs or perform any maintenance required of Lessee. No temporary 

interruption or failure of such service incident to the making of repairs, alterations or improvements, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



9 

or due to accident or strike, or condition or events beyond Lessor's reasonable control shall be deemed 

an eviction of Lessee or relieve Lessee from any of Lessee's obligations hereunder.  

 

9. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE. 

9.1 Lessor's Obligations.  Except for damage caused by the negligence or intentional act 

or omission of Lessee or Lessee Parties, Lessor shall, at Lessor's expense, provide capital repairs to 

the roof, roof structure, foundations and exterior walls of the Buildings. Lessor shall also be 

responsible, at Lessor’s expense, for replacement of the rooftop mounted heating and air conditioning 

equipment servicing the Premises.  Lessee shall promptly notify Lessor of any damage to the Premises 

requiring capital repairs or replacement, which Lessor agrees will be repaired or replaced in a 

commercially reasonable period following such notice; provided that it is agreed and understood that 

Lessee will be required to reimburse Lessor as additional rent for any capital repairs or replacements 

that are caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Lessee or any Lessee Parties.  For the 

avoidance of doubt, the obligations set forth in this Section 9.1 are intended by the parties to be the 

sole obligations of Lessor with respect to its maintenance, repair, and replacement obligations for the 

Premises.  Capital repairs shall be defined per generally acceptable accounting principles ..     

 

9.2 Lessee's Obligations.  Subject to Lessor’s obligations as described above, Lessee, at 

Lessee's expense, shall keep in good order, condition and repair the Premises.  Lessees responsibilities 

shall include, without limitation (i) the maintenance and/or repair of any heating and air conditioning 

equipment servicing the Premises; (ii) maintenance of roof and gutters, including periodic cleaning of 

same; (iii) the maintenance of the plumbing, mechanical, life safety, security systems, and electrical 

utilities servicing the Premises; (iv) the necessary repairs and replacements to the entry doors, window 

frames, hardware, glass, and interior walls of the Premises; (v) the janitorial services to the Premises, 

(vi) maintenance, repair, and replacement (at the same quality or better) of the Existing FF&E; (viii) 

the replacement of light bulbs, tubes and washroom and toilet supplies for the Premises; and (ix) all 

landscaping and snow removal services required to be performed at the Premises.  Lessee is responsible 

for the maintenance, repair and/or replacement of the individual heating and air conditioning units  

known as “packaged terminal air conditioners” (PTAC) found in the individual residential units within 

the Premises.  All damage or injury done to the Premises or any appurtenances thereto either by Lessee, 

or any Lessee Parties, or by any other persons who may be in the Premises with the consent of Lessee, 

including the cracking or breaking of glass of any windows and doors from inside the Premises, shall 

be paid for by Lessee. If Lessee fails to perform Lessee's obligations hereunder relating to the repair, 

maintenance or upkeep of the Premises as required herein, Lessor may, following reasonable notice to 

Lessee, at its option (but shall not be required to), enter upon the Premises upon reasonable prior 

written notice to Lessee and put the same in good order, condition, and repair or otherwise cure the 

default, and the cost of such action shall become due and payable as additional rent to Lessor at the 

time Lessee's next installment of Monthly Rent that becomes due. All of Lessee’s obligations under 

this Section 9.2 shall be performed to a professional standard and, as applicable, by licensed and 

bonded contractors and/or professionals; provided that Lessee may engage the services of nonprofit 

entities and/or volunteers for work performed under this Section 9.2 if the work being performed meets 

the following requirements: (i) does not require a permit, (ii) is non-structural in nature, and (iii) does 

not require that the individual performing the work possess a specialized license or certification for 

such work.   For the avoidance of doubt, except for the obligations of Lessor set forth in Section 9.1 

above, Lessee is solely responsible for all maintenance, repairs, and replacement costs related to the 

Premises. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



10 

10. ALTERATIONS. 

10.1 Improvements by Lessee.  Lessee shall not make any alterations, additions or 

improvements (collectively, “Alterations”) in or to the Premises without first obtaining the written 

consent of Lessor, not to be unreasonably withheld. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessor’s consent 

shall not be required for any Alterations that (i) do not affect the structure, slab, or roof of the Buildings, 

(ii) do not require a building permit, and (iii) the cost of which does not exceed $10,000.00 (“Minor 

Alterations”).   

 

(a) Plans and Specifications.  Lessee shall deliver to Lessor full and complete plans 

and specifications for any Alterations, including but not limited to the conversion or addition of 

residential rooms in the Premises or on the Property. Lessor does not and will not make any covenant 

or warranty, express or implied, that any such plans or specifications submitted by Lessee are accurate, 

complete or in any way suited for their intended purpose. 

 

(b) Compliance with Laws; Liens.  All Alterations shall be completed by Lessee at 

Lessee’s sole cost and expense and shall be performed in accordance with all laws, ordinances, rules 

and regulations of any federal, state, county, municipal or other public authority.  Lessee expressly 

covenants and agrees that Lessee will not allow any liens of mechanics, material men, laborers, 

architects, engineers, artisans, contractors, subcontractors, or any other lien of any kind whatsoever to 

be created against or imposed upon the Premises, and that in the event any such claims or liens  of any 

kind whatsoever shall be asserted or filed by any persons, firms or corporations, Lessee shall pay off 

or make diligent effort to cause the same to be discharged of record within five (5) days of notification 

thereof. Even if Lessor consents to the making of any Alterations, such consent shall not constitute the 

granting of any authority to Lessee to allow any liens of mechanics, material men, laborers, architects, 

engineers, artisans, contractors, subcontractors, or any other person or entity whatsoever to be created 

against or imposed upon the Premises. 

 

(c) Ownership of Improvements.  Prior to the commencement of any Alteration 

requiring approval by Lessor, Lessor will advise Lessee whether such Alteration is required to be 

removed at the termination of the Lease. 

 

(d) Contractor's Insurance.  Lessee acknowledges and agrees that a material 

condition to the granting of approval of Lessor to any Alteration required under this Lease or desired 

by Lessee is that the contractors who perform such work shall a maintain a commercial general liability 

insurance policy covering both bodily injury and property damage in the amount of Two Million 

Dollars ($2,000,000.00). Lessor may require proof of such insurance coverage from each contractor at 

the time of submission of Lessee's request for Lessor's consent to commence work.   

11. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION.   

If the Premises are damaged, destroyed, either wholly or in part, by fire or other casualty, 

Lessor shall forthwith repair the same, or cause the same to be repaired, materially to the extent the 

Premises were originally delivered to Lessee unless this Lease is terminated as permitted herein. Within 

thirty (30) days from the date of such damage, Lessor shall notify Lessee if the Premises is damaged 

in excess of fifteen percent (15%) of the Premises’ pre-casualty value, as reasonably determined by 

Lessor (damage in excess of such amount being referred to as "Major Damage" and damage equal to 

or less than such amount being referred to as "Minor Damage"). If Major Damage occurs, Lessor may 

elect to terminate the Lease in whole or just with respect to the damaged portion of the Premises with 

a corresponding equitable adjustment in Monthly Rent. If Minor Damage occurs then Lessor shall 

repair such damage and rebuild that portion of the Premises damaged. In the event of Major Damage, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



11 

if Lessor gives its written notice to Lessee electing to rebuild, or to cause the same to be rebuilt, or in 

the event of Minor Damage, this Lease shall remain in full force and effect provided Lessor completes 

the repairs within six (6) months, subject to extension for Force Majeure, except the Monthly Rent 

shall be abated during the period of repair in which Lessee’s use of the Premises is interrupted.  If the 

damage is due, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly to the fault or neglect of Lessee or any Lessee 

Parties, there shall be no or proportional abatement of Monthly Rent and Lessee shall be wholly or 

proportionally responsible for all deductibles and increased insurance costs or premiums due to such 

damage, which obligation shall survive the Lease Term.  If in the event of Major Damage Lessor elects 

by written notice to Lessee not to repair or rebuild, then this Lease shall automatically terminate as of 

the effective date of such notice. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, Lessor's obligation to restore 

the Premises shall be limited to the extent of the insurance proceeds available to Lessor for such 

restoration (less any amounts claimed by the holder of any first mortgage or the beneficiary of any first 

deed of trust on the Premises), and Lessor shall have no obligation to restore the Premises if such 

damage or destruction occurs during the last year of the Lease Term. 

12. CONDEMNATION.  

If all of the Premises, or such portions as may be required for the reasonable use of the 

Premises, are taken by eminent domain, or sold by Lessor under the threat of the exercise of said power 

(all of which is in referred to in this Lease as “condemnation”), this Lease shall automatically terminate 

as of the date Lessee is required to vacate the Premises and all rentals shall be paid to that date. In case 

of a taking of a part of the Premises, or a portion not required for Lessee’s reasonable use of the 

Premises, then this Lease shall continue in full force and effect and the rental shall be equitably reduced 

based on the proportion by which the Agreed Floor Area of the Premises is reduced, such rent reduction 

to be effective as of the date possession of such portion is delivered to the condemning authority. 

Lessor reserves all rights to damage to the Premises for any taking by condemnation, and Lessee hereby 

assigns to Lessor any right Lessee may have to such damages or award, and Lessee shall make no claim 

against Lessor for damages for termination of the leasehold interest or interference with Lessee's 

business. Lessee shall have the right, however, to claim and recover from the condemning authority 

compensation for any loss to which Lessee may be put for Lessee's moving expenses and loss of 

business, provided that such damages may be claimed only if they are awarded separately in the 

condemnation proceedings and not as part of the damages recoverable by Lessor.  

 

13. HAZARDOUS WASTE.  

 

Lessee represents and warrants that no Hazardous Materials (as defined below) will be stored 

on or under the Premises except for reasonable amounts of materials as is generated by Lessee from its 

use of the Premises as defined in Section 1(i), and then only to the extent such storage is in compliance 

at all times and in all respects with Environmental Laws. Lessee further represents and warrants that 

Lessee's Alterations and equipment on the Premises shall not incorporate lead, asbestos, or PCBs. The 

terms, covenants, representations and warranties contained herein shall survive the termination or 

expiration of this Lease. 

 

The term "Hazardous Materials" means hazardous or toxic substance, materials or wastes, 

including but not limited to any substance, material or waste which is (i)  petroleum; (ii) asbestos; 

(iii) polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs); (iv) designated as a "Hazardous Waste" pursuant to the 

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §6901, et seq.; (v) designated as a "Hazardous 

Substance" under the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1321, or listed pursuant to 33 U.S.C. § 1317; 

(vi) listed by the U.S. Department of Transportation at 49 C.F.R. 172.101 or by the U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency under 40 C.F.R. Part 302; and (vii) any other substance, waste or material which is 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



12 

regulated as hazardous or dangerous by any federal, state, or local agency. The term "Environmental 

Laws" shall mean any and all of the foregoing laws referenced in (iv) through (viii) in this paragraph.  

 

 

14. LESSEE RESPONSIBILITY. 

14.1    

Lessor, including its affiliates, contractors, partners, and employees (collectively “Lessor 

Parties”) shall be liable for any loss or damage to person or property sustained by Lessee or any Lessee 

Parties, or other persons, which may be caused by the Premises, or any appurtenance thereto, being out 

of repair, or the bursting or leakage of any water, gas, sewer or steam pipe, or by theft, or by any act 

or neglect of any Lessee or occupant of the Premises, or of any other person, or by any other cause of 

whatsoever nature, unless directly caused by Lessor Parties. Lessee agrees to use and occupy the 

Premises at its own risk and hereby releases the Lessor Parties, including its agents and employees 

from all claims for any damage or injury to the fullest extent permitted by law. As used herein, “Lessee 

Parties” means Lessee, its officers, contractors, licensees, agents, servants, employees, guests, invitees, 

tenants or subtenants occupying the Premises.   

14.2 Insurance. 

 

(a) Lessee Insurance.  Lessee shall, throughout the terms of this Lease and any 

Extension Term, at its own expense, keep and maintain in full force and effect a policy of commercial 

general liability insurance, as Lessee currently maintains through ICRMP. All policies shall be payable 

on an "occurrence" rather than a "claims made" basis; and 

  (b) Lessor Insurance.  Lessor will keep and maintain commercially reasonable 

property insurance policies covering the FF&E and the Buildings, the cost of which will be reimbursed 

by Lessee on an annual basis.  The phrase “commercially reasonable” as used in this Section 14.2(b) 

shall mean insurance policies (including, without limitation, type, scope, and deductible amounts) that 

are normally obtained by owners of similar type buildings in Blaine County, Idaho.   

 

15. ASSIGNMENT.  

 

 Lessee shall not assign, transfer, mortgage or encumber this Lease in whole or in part, nor 

sublet the whole or any part of the Premises without first obtaining Lessor's written consent, which 

Lessor may withhold in its sole discretion. Lessor’s consent to any transfer shall not be deemed consent 

to any subsequent transfers.  Notwithstanding the foregoing Lessee may, without the prior consent of 

Lessor, enter into limited term rental (not to exceed one (1) year) agreements substantially in the form of 

Lessee’s standard residential lease template (“Rental Agreement”), as part of its normal course of business; 

provided, however, during the last twelve (12) months of the Lease Term Lessee will not enter into any 

new tenant leases that extend beyond the term of this Lease.  For purposes of clarification, it shall not be 

considered unreasonable for Lessor to reject any Rental Agreement in which the term of the lease extends 

(or may be extended by the tenant) beyond the Expiration Date or earlier termination of the Lease.  

 

If Lessee is an entity, then any dissolution, liquidation, merger, or consolidation of Lessee, or 

any change in ownership of a majority of the ownership interests of Lessee, whether directly or 

indirectly (including without limitation any change in control  of a majority of the ownership interests 

in any of the entities controlling Lessee), shall constitute an assignment for purposes of this Section  

15. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



13 

16. EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. 

 

16.1 Events of Default.  Time is of the essence hereof. The occurrence of any one or more 

of the following events shall constitute an "Event of Default" by Lessee: 

 

(a) The vacating or abandonment of the Premises by Lessee; 

 

(b) Intentionally Omitted;  

 

(c) The failure by Lessee to make any payment of Rent or any other payment 

required to be made by Lessee hereunder as and when due, and such failure shall continue for a period 

of five (5) days after written notice thereof by Lessor to Lessee; provided, however, that Lessor shall 

provide such notice no more than two (2) times during any calendar year, and any subsequent failure 

by Lessee to make any payment or Rent due hereunder as and when due shall constitute an automatic 

default;  

 

(d) The failure by Lessee to observe or perform any of the covenants, agreements, 

terms or conditions of this Lease, other than described in subsections (a) through (c) above, where such 

failure shall continue or shall not be remedied within thirty (30) days after notice in writing thereof is 

given by Lessor to Lessee, specifying the matter claimed to be in default; provided, however,  that if 

the nature of Lessee's default is such that more than thirty (30) days are reasonably required for its 

cure, then Lessee shall not be deemed to be in default if Lessee commences such cure within said thirty 

(30) day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes such cure to completion; provided, further, 

however, that such period of time shall not be so extended if it results in reasonably imminent jeopardy 

to the interest of Lessor in the Premises or so as to subject Lessor to any liability, civil or criminal ; and 

 

(e) The failure of Lessee to comply with the provisions of Section 14 or 15 herein.  

 

16.2 Remedies.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default by Lessee, Lessor may, at any 

time thereafter, in its sole discretion, upon notice or demand and without limiting Lessor in the exercise 

of any other right or remedy which Lessor may have by reason of such Event of Default: 

 

(a) Terminate Lessee's right to possession of the Premises by any lawful means, in 

which case this Lease shall terminate and Lessee shall thereafter have no further rights hereunder or in 

the Premises; provided, however, that upon such termination Lessor shall be entitled to recover from 

Lessee all damages incurred by Lessor by reason of Lessee's default, including but not limited to the cost 

of recovering possession of the Premises; expenses of reletting, including necessary renovation and 

alteration of the Premises; reasonable attorneys' fees; all accrued and unpaid rent (including, without 

limitation, all Monthly Rent and additional rent due from Lessee through the remainder of the Term),  

and other amounts due from Lessee with interest thereon at the rate set forth in Section 4.2 above; the 

worth at the time of the award by the court having jurisdiction thereof of the amount by which the unpaid 

rent and other charges called for herein for the balance of the term after the time of such award exceeds 

the amount of such loss for the same period that Lessee proves could be reasonably avoided; and that 

portion of any leasing commission paid by Lessor and applicable to the unexpired term of this Lease; or 

 

(b) Maintain Lessee’s right to possession, in which case the Lease shall continue in 

effect whether or not Lessee shall have abandoned the Premises, and Lessor shall be entitled to enforce 

all of Lessor’s rights and remedies under this Lease, including, without limitation, the right to recover 

the Monthly Rent and any other charges due or to become due hereunder with interest at the rate provided 

for herein; or 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



14 

(c) Pursue any other remedy or remedies now or hereafter available to Lessor under 

the laws or judicial decisions of the state in which the Premises are located; or 

(d) Perform, on behalf of Lessee, any obligation of Lessee under this Lease that Lessee 

has failed to perform and of which Lessor has given Lessee notice as set forth above, the commercially 

reasonable cost of which performance shall be immediately paid by Lessee to Lessor as additional rent 

hereunder.  All rights, options and remedies of Lessor contained in this Lease shall be construed and held 

to be cumulative, and no one of them shall be exclusive of the other, and Lessor shall have the right to 

pursue any one or all of such remedies or any other remedy or relief which may be provided by law, whether 

or not stated in this Lease. 

17. ACCESS.    

Upon 48 hours’ notice to Lessee (except in the case of an emergency, in which case only reasonable 

notice shall be required), Lessee shall permit Lessor and its agents to enter into and upon the Premises at 

all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the same or for the purpose of repairing, altering or 

improving the Premises as contemplated in this Lease. Nothing contained in this Section 17 shall be 

deemed to impose any obligation upon Lessor not expressly stated elsewhere in this Lease. Lessor shall 

have the right to enter the Premises for the purpose of showing the Premises to prospective lessees within 

one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the expiration or sooner termination of the Lease Term.  

18. SIGNAGE.   

All signage shall be at Lessee’s sole cost and expense and shall be approved in writing in advance 

by Lessor, which may require previous signage removed by Lessee to be re-installed at Lessee’s expense. 

All signage shall comply with any applicable rules, regulations, law or ordinances of any governmental 

authority having jurisdiction over the Premises.   Any such consent by Lessor shall be upon the 

understanding and condition that Lessee will remove the same at the expiration or sooner termination of 

this Lease and Lessee shall repair any damage to the Premises caused thereby. 

19. LIENS AND INSOLVENCY. 

 

Lessee shall keep the Premises free from any liens arising out of any work performed, materials 

ordered or obligations incurred by Lessee. If Lessee becomes insolvent, voluntarily or involuntarily 

bankrupt, or if a receiver, assignee or other liquidating officer is appointed for the business of Lessee, 

then Lessor may terminate Lessee's right of possession under this Lease at Lessor's option and in no event 

shall the Lease or any rights or privileges hereunder be an asset of Lessee under any bankruptcy, 

insolvency or reorganization proceedings. 

20. REMOVAL OF PROPERTY. 

 

20.1 Surrender of Premises; Assignment of Tenant Leases.  Upon expiration or sooner 

termination of this Lease, whether by lapse of time or otherwise, Lessee shall promptly and peacefully 

surrender the Premises to Lessor in as good condition as when received by Lessee from Lessor or as 

thereafter improved, reasonable use and wear excepted.   Subject to Section 10 above, all other property 

in the Premises and any Alterations performed at the Premises shall become the property of Lessor and 

shall remain upon and be surrendered with the Premises, Lessee hereby waiving all rights to any payment 

or compensation therefor. Unless Lessor approves so in writing, Lessee will, upon termination of this Lease, 

remove any Alterations and property placed or installed by Lessee or any Lessee Parties in the Premises as 

requested by Lessor, and will immediately repair any damage caused by or resulting from such removal to 

the condition of the Premises as of the Commencement Date, reasonable wear and tear excepted. Upon 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



15 

request by Lessor, Lessee shall provide a list of all active tenants, including the leases associated with 

each tenant and a detailed rent roll.  On or prior to expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, Lessee 

shall assign each of the foregoing leases to Lessor.  

 

20.2 Failure to Remove Property.  If Lessee fails to remove any of its property of any nature 

whatsoever from the Premises at the termination of this Lease or when Lessor has the right of reentry, 

Lessor may at its option, remove and store such property, such storage to be for the account and at the 

expense of Lessee. If Lessee shall not pay the cost of storing any such property after it has been stored 

for a period of thirty (30) days or more, Lessor may, at its option, sell, or permit to be sold, any or all of 

such property at public or private sale (and Lessor may become a purchaser at such sale), in such manner 

and at such times and place as Lessor in its sole discretion may deem proper without notice to Lessee, 

and shall apply the proceeds of such sale:  first, to the cost and expense of such sale, including reasonable 

attorneys' fees actually incurred; second, to the payment of the costs or charges for storing any such 

property; third, to the payment of any other sums of money which may then be or thereafter become due 

to Lessor from Lessee under any of the terms hereof, and fourth, the balance, if any, to Lessee. 

 

21. NON-WAIVER.    

Waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition herein contained shall 

not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant or condition, or of any subsequent breach of the 

same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained. The subsequent acceptance of any 

monetary payment by Lessee hereunder by Lessor shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding 

breach by Lessee of any term, covenant, or condition of this Lease, other than the failure of Lessee to 

pay the particular monetary payment so accepted, regardless of Lessor's knowledge of such preceding 

breach at the time of acceptance of such monetary payment. 

22.  HOLDOVER.  

 If Lessee, with Lessor's written consent, remains in possession of the Premises after expiration or 

termination of the term, such possession by Lessee shall be deemed to be a month-to-month tenancy 

terminable as provided under law (or such lesser time as may be agreed upon by Lessor and Lessee in any 

amendment to this Lease), by either party.  All provisions of this Lease, except those pertaining to Term 

and Rent, shall apply to the month-to-month tenancy.  If Lessee fails to surrender possession of the Premises 

upon termination or expiration of this Lease and if Lessee does not obtain Lessor’s written consent to 

Lessee’s continued occupancy Lessee shall be considered a lessee at sufferance and (i) Monthly Rent during 

any holdover period will be in an amount equal to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the Monthly Rent 

for the last full calendar month during the Term, and (ii) Lessee shall be liable to Lessor for all direct 

damages sustained by Lessor as a result thereof.   

23. NOTICES.   

 

 All notices under this Lease shall be sent by electronic mail to the electronic mail addresses set 

forth in Section 1 hereof (or such other electronic mail address as may from time to time be designated 

by such party in writing), and to the holder of any first mortgage or deed of trust at such place as such 

holder shall specify to Lessee in writing. Notices sent by electronic mail shall be deemed delivered at 

1:00 p.m. (Mountain Time) on the next business day following transmission.   

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



16 

24. COSTS AND ATTORNEYS' FEES.   

In the event of any action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with this Lease, the 

substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to all costs, expenses and reasonable attorneys' fees, 

with or without suit and on appeal. 

25. LESSOR'S LIABILITY.   

Anything in this Lease to the contrary notwithstanding, covenants, undertakings and 

agreements herein made on the part of Lessor are made and intended not as personal covenants, 

undertakings and agreements or for the purpose of binding Lessor personally or the assets of Lessor 

except Lessor's interest in the Premises, but are made and intended for the purpose of binding only 

Lessor's interest in the Premises.  No personal liability or personal responsibility is assumed by, nor 

shall at any time be asserted or enforceable against Lessor or its partners and their respective heirs, 

legal representatives, successors and assigns on account of this Lease or on account of any covenant, 

undertaking or agreement of Lessor contained in this Lease.  In consideration of the benefits accruing 

hereunder, Lessee agrees that, in the event of any actual or alleged failure, breach or default of this Lease by 

Lessor, Lessor's liability under this Lease shall be limited to, and Lessee shall look only to Lessor’s interest in 

the Premises and the rents and proceeds thereof. 

26. SUBORDINATION; ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE. 

26.1 Subordination.  Upon demand by Lessor or the holder of any mortgage or deed of trust 

now existing or that may hereafter be placed upon the Premises, Lessee will execute an agreement of 

subordination, nondisturbance and attornment in such reasonable form as is acceptable to Lessor and to 

such mortgage holder. In the absence of such agreement, Lessee agrees that this Lease shall be 

subordinate to any mortgage or deed of trust now existing or hereafter placed upon the Premises and to 

any and all advances to be made thereunder, and to interest thereon, and all renewals, replacements or 

extensions thereof. Lessee's failure to execute and return such agreement within thirty (30) calendar days 

after Lessor's delivery of such document to Lessee shall constitute an automatic Event of Default by 

Lessee under this Lease. 

 

26.2 Estoppel. Lessee shall, from time to time upon written request of Lessor, execute, 

acknowledge and deliver to Lessor or its designee a written statement in such form as Lessor may request, 

stating the date this Lease was executed and the date it expires; the date Lessee entered into occupancy 

of the Premises, the amount of minimum monthly rental and the date to which such rental has been paid, 

and certifying that this Lease is in full force and effect and has not been assigned, modified, supplemented 

or amended in any way (or specifying the date of any agreement so affecting this Lease); that this Lease 

represents the entire agreement between the parties as to this leasing; that all conditions under this Lease 

to be performed by Lessor have been satisfied; that all required contributions by Lessor to Lessee on 

account of Lessee's improvements have been received; that on that date there are no existing defenses or 

offsets which Lessee has against the enforcement of this Lease by Lessor; that no rental has been paid in 

advance; that no security has been deposited with Lessor (or, if so, the amount thereof); and such other 

matters about the Lease as Lessor may reasonably request. It is intended that any such statement delivered 

pursuant to this Section 26.2 may be relied upon by a prospective purchaser of Lessor's interest or a 

mortgagee of Lessor's interest or assignee of any mortgage upon Lessor's interest in the Premises.  If 

Lessee fails to respond within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt by Lessee of a written request by Lessor 

as herein provided, Lessee shall be deemed to have given such certificate as above provided without 

modification and shall be deemed to have admitted the accuracy of any information supplied by Lessor 

to a prospective purchaser or mortgagee, including, without limitation that the Lease is in full force and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



17 

effect, there are no uncured defaults by Lessor, that any security deposit is as stated in the Lease, and that 

not more than one (1) months Monthly Rent has been paid in advance.   

27. TRANSFER OF LESSOR'S INTEREST.   

This Lease shall be assignable by Lessor without the consent of Lessee in the event of any transfer 

or transfers of Lessor's interest in the Premises, and except in the case of a transfer for security purposes 

only the transferor shall be automatically relieved of any and all obligations and liabilities on the part of 

Lessor accruing from and after the date of such transfer and Lessee agrees to attorn to the transferee. 

28. RIGHT OF FIRST OFFER; EXCLUSIVE PURCHASE NEGOTIATION PERIOD.   

 

28.1 Right of First Offer.  If, during the Lease Term, Lessor determines to offer all or any portion 

of the Property to the market for sale, then Lessor will notify Lessee before taking the Property to the 

market.  Lessee will have ninety (90) days after receipt of the foregoing notice to negotiate the purchase 

terms with Lessor (the “ROFO”).  If Lessor and Lessee agree on the purchase terms during such ninety (90) 

day period the parties will execute a commercially standard purchase and sale agreement memorializing 

such terms within twenty (20) days thereafter.  If the parties are unable to negotiate the purchase terms 

within ninety (90) days, or to execute a purchase and sale agreement within twenty (20) days following 

agreement on the purchase terms, then Lessee’s ROFO may be deemed null and void and Lessor may 

thereafter enter into negotiations with any third party to sell the Property. 

28.2 Unsolicited Offers.  If, during the Lease Term, Lessor receives an unsolicited offer to 

purchase all or any portion of the Property on terms acceptable to Lessor, then Lessor will notify Lessee 

before responding to such offer.  Lessee shall have five (5) business days to notify Lessor if it would like 

to match such offer and, if so, Lessee shall have no more than ninety (90) calendar days to raise sufficient 

funding and close a transaction for all or any portion of the Property.  

28.3 Exclusive Purchase Negotiation Period.   Except as otherwise set forth herein, Lessee is 

hereby granted a one (1) time right, which may be exercised at any point during the Lease Term, to notify 

Lessor of its interest in purchasing the Property (the “Purchase Notice”).  In the event Lessee provides a 

Purchase Notice Lessor agrees to the commencement of an exclusive negotiation period of ninety (90) days 

to reach agreement on the purchase terms, including, without limitation the purchase price.  If Lessor and 

Lessee agree on purchase terms during such ninety (90) day period the parties will execute a commercially 

standard purchase and sale agreement memorializing such terms within twenty (20) days thereafter; 

provided that the purchase and sale agreement will include a period of not less than ninety (90) days from 

execution to closing to allow Lessee sufficient time to secure funding and required legislative approvals to 

purchase the Property.  If the parties are unable to negotiate the purchase terms within ninety (90) days, or 

to execute a purchase and sale agreement within twenty (20) days following agreement on the purchase 

terms, then the exclusive negotiating period shall expire.   

29. PARKING.  

Lessee (including any tenants who are parties to Rental Agreement) may park passenger vehicles 

in the areas depicted on Exhibit C at no additional cost or expense.  Lessee agrees to assume responsibility 

for compliance by Lessee Parties with the parking provisions contained herein, and shall cooperate with 

Lessor in enforcement thereof. Lessor shall have no obligation to provide security or any other services to 

the parking areas and shall have no liability with respect to any vehicles parked in the parking areas. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



18 

30. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

(a) This Lease shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of Idaho. 

 

(b) The title of sections of this Lease are not a part of this Lease and shall have no effect 

upon the construction or interpretation of any part hereof. Where the context permits, references to the 

singular shall include the plural and vice versa, and references to a neutral gender shall include the 

feminine and masculine. 

 

(c) All of the covenants, agreements, terms and conditions contained in this Lease shall apply 

to and be binding upon Lessor and Lessee and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors 

and assigns. 

 

(d) Lessee represents and warrants to Lessor that it has not engaged any broker, finder or 

other person who would be entitled to any commission or fee in respect to the negotiation, execution or 

delivery of this Lease except for that broker identified in Section 1(j) hereof. 

 

(e) This Lease contains all covenants and agreements between Lessor and Lessee relating in 

any manner to the rental, use and occupancy of the Premises and other matters set forth in this Lease. No 

prior agreements or understanding pertaining to the same shall be valid or of any force or effect and the 

covenants and agreements of this Lease shall not be altered, modified, or added to except in writing 

signed by Lessor and Lessee. Any provision of this Lease which shall prove to be invalid, void or illegal 

shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate any other provision hereof and the remaining provisions hereof 

shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect. 

 

(f) If any term or provision of this Lease or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstance shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease, and/or the 

application of such term or provision to person or circumstances other than those as to which it is invalid 

or unenforceable, shall not affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Lease shall be valid and 

be enforced as written to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 

(g) This Lease has been submitted to the scrutiny of all parties hereto and their counsel if 

desired, and shall be given a fair and reasonable interpretation in accordance with the words hereof, 

without consideration or weight be given to its having been drafted by any party hereto or its counsel. 

 

(h) If more than one person or entity constitutes Lessor or Lessee, the obligations imposed 

upon each such person or entity shall be joint and several.   

 

(i) This Lease shall not be recorded or otherwise placed of record by Lessee.  Upon request 

by Lessee, Lessee may record a memorandum of lease, in recordable form, prepared by Lessor, and 

evidencing the commencement date, rights of first offer to purchase, extension rights, and expiration 

of this Lease.  Upon request by Lessor, at the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, Lessee 

shall execute in recordable form and deliver to Lessor a termination of lease agreement covering the 

Premises. 

 

(j) If either party is delayed in the performance of any covenant of this Lease because of 

any of the following causes (referred to elsewhere in this Lease as “Force Majeure”): action of the 

elements, war, riot, labor disputes, inability to procure or general shortage of labor or material in the 

normal channels of trade, delay in transportation, delay in inspections, or any other cause beyond the 

reasonable control of the party so obligated, whether similar or dissimilar to the foregoing, financial 

inability excepted, then, such performance shall be excused for the period of the delay; and the period 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



19 

for such performance shall be extended for a period equivalent to the period of such delay, except that 

the foregoing shall in no way affect Lessee's obligation to pay Rent or any other amount payable 

hereunder, or the length of the Lease Term. 

 

(k) This Lease may be executed in original or electronic counterparts for the convenience 

of the parties, and such counterparts shall together constitute one Lease. 

(l) If Lessee is a legal entity, each individual executing this Lease on behalf of such entity 

represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf of 

such entity and that this Lease is binding upon such entity in accordance with its terms. 

(m) The following exhibits are made a part of this Lease: 

EXHIBIT A - Legal Description of Land 

EXHIBIT B – Housing Guidelines 

EXHIBIT C – Premises 

EXHIBIT D – Form of Assignment and Assumption of Existing Tenant 

Leases 

EXHIBIT E – Form of Letter of Credit 

 

[END OF LEASE – SIGNATURES AND EXHIBITS FOLLOW]

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Signature Page to Master Lease Agreement 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Lease has been executed as of the Effective Date. 

LESSOR: 

WOOD RIVER LLC,  

a Washington limited liability company 

  

By: BearRock Investments LLC, 

a Washington limited liability company 

Its: Member/Manager  

 

By: __________________________ 

David Rothrock, Member/Manager 

 

By: __________________________ 

Douglas Barrett, Member/Manager 

LESSEE: 

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  

an independent public body created by Blaine County, Idaho 

 

By: __________________________ 

 

Name:  Keith Perry 

BCHA Board Chair 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit A to Master Lease Agreement 

EXHIBIT A 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LAND 

 

Northridge X Subdivision Lot 1 Block 1 

 

Parcel No: RPH5000010010 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit B to Master Lease Agreement 

EXHIBIT B 

 

SECTION 2 OF BCHA COMMUNITY HOUSING GUIDELINES 

 

 

 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit B to Master Lease Agreement 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit B to Master Lease Agreement 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit C to Master Lease Agreement 

EXHIBIT C 

 

PREMISES 

 

Aerial View (Drawing) of Buildings and Land 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit C to Master Lease Agreement 

Premises Floor Plan (Buildings are Mirror Images of Each Other) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit C to Master Lease Agreement 

Parking Layout (Showing Initial Parking Stalls) 

 
 

 

 

Parking Expansion (Showing Addition of 12 Additional Stalls) 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit D to Master Lease Agreement 

EXHIBIT D 

 

FORM OF ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF EXISTING TENANT LEASES 

 

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF LEASES 

 
FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, WOOD 

RIVER LLC, a Washington limited liability company (“Assignor”), hereby assigns and delegates to 

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY, an independent public body created by Blaine County, 

Idaho (“Assignee”), all of the lessor’s rights, interest and obligations in all leases identified on Exhibit A 

attached hereto, which relate to the leasing of residential units located on real property located in Blaine 

County, Idaho, more particularly described as: Northridge X Subdivision Lot 1 Block 1. Concurrently 

herewith, Assignor assigns to Assignee the security deposits listed on Exhibit A. 

This Assignment and Assumption of Leases has been made under the laws of the State of Idaho, 

and such laws will control its interpretation without regard to any choice of law principles. This Assignment 

shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and 

assigns. This Assignment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original. Any 

party may sign and/or transmit this Assignment electronically (including, without limitation, via electronic 

mail or DocuSign, as applicable); the signature of any person or entity on any such electronically signed 

and/or electrically transmitted copy shall be deemed an original signature; and each such electronically 

signed and/or electronically transmitted copy shall have the same binding effect as a manually signed and 

manually transmitted original document. 

Executed on ________________, 2024. 

 

ASSIGNOR:  

 

WOOD RIVER LLC,  

a Washington limited liability company 

  

By: BearRock Investments LLC, 

a Washington limited liability company 

Its: Member/Manager  

 

By: __________________________ 

David Rothrock, Member/Manager 

 

By: __________________________ 

Douglas Barrett, Member/Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit D to Master Lease Agreement 

The undersigned Assignee hereby accepts the foregoing Assignment and Assumption of Leases 

and agrees to perform  all obligations and liabilities first arising and accruing pursuant to such leases on or 

after the date hereof. Assignee further acknowledges assignment of the security deposits described above 

and agrees to hold such deposits in accordance with the terms of each of the enumerated leases. 

 

Executed on: _______________, 2024 

ASSIGNEE:  

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY  

an independent public body created by Blaine County, Idaho 

By: _____________________ 

Name: __________________ 

Its: _____________________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit D to Master Lease Agreement 

EXHIBIT A TO ASSIGNMENT OF LEASES 

 

[Existing Tenant Leases Previously Provided to Lessee] 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit E to Master Lease Agreement 

EXHIBIT E 

 

FORM OF LETTER OF CREDIT 

 

 

IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT  

 

ISSUE DATE: ______________ 

 

ISSUER: 

CITY OF KETCHUM, a municipal corporation of the State of Idaho 

Attn: City Administrator 

PO Box 2315 

Ketchum, ID 83340 

 

 

BENEFICIARY: 

WOOD RIVER LLC 

232 7th Avenue North, Suite 100 

Seattle, WA  98109 

Attn: Doug Barrett and David Rothrock 

 

 

APPLICANT: 

BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

111 North 1st Avenue, Suite 2J 

Hailey, Idaho 83333 

 

 

AMOUNT: $500,000.00 (FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND 00/100 U.S. DOLLARS) 

 

EXPIRATION DATE:  ONE YEAR FROM ISSUANCE DATE 

 

DEAR SIR/MADAM: 

 

WE (THE "CITY") HEREBY ISSUE OUR IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT 

APPROVED BY RESOLUTION NUMBER ___________ IN BENEFICIARY'S FAVOR FOR THE 

ACCOUNT OF THE ABOVE-REFERENCED APPLICANT, IN AN AGGREGATE AMOUNT NOT 

TO EXCEED $500,000.00 USD. 

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS AVAILABLE WITH US AT OUR ABOVE OFFICE BY 

PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT DRAWN ON US AT SIGHT IN THE FORM OF EXHIBIT “A” 

ATTACHED HERETO (“FORM OF REQUEST”) BEARING THE CLAUSE:  “DRAWN UNDER 

CITY OF KETCHUM LETTER OF CREDIT UNDER RESOLUTION ______________” AND 

ACCOMPANIED BY THE FOLLOWING: 

1. THE ORIGINAL OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT; AND 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit E to Master Lease Agreement 

2. BENEFICIARY’S SIGNED CERTIFICATION PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY AN 

AUTHORIZED OFFICER OR AGENT STATING: “A DEFAULT OR OTHER 

CIRCUMSTANCE ALLOWING BENEFICIARY TO DRAW UPON THE LETTER OF 

CREDIT HAS OCCURRED UNDER THE TERMS OF THAT CERTAIN MASTER 

LEASE AGREEMENT DATED AS OF ___________, AS SUCH MASTER LEASE 

AGREEMENT HAS BEEN OR MAY BE AMENDED FROM TIME TO TIME, FOR 

PREMISES LOCATED AT 31 EAST MCKERCHER BLVD, HAILEY, IDAHO.” 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

 

PARTIAL DRAWS AND MULTIPLE PRESENTATIONS ARE ALLOWED.  

 

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT SHALL BE AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED FOR ADDITIONAL 

PERIODS OF ONE YEAR, WITHOUT AMENDMENT, FROM THE PRESENT OR EACH FUTURE 

EXPIRATION DATE UNLESS AT LEAST 60 DAYS PRIOR TO THE THEN CURRENT EXPIRATION 

DATE WE SEND TO YOU A NOTICE BY REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED MAIL OR OVERNIGHT 

COURIER SERVICE AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS THAT THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WILL NOT BE 

EXTENDED BEYOND THE THEN CURRENT EXPIRATION DATE.  

 

ALL DEMANDS FOR PAYMENT SHALL BE MADE BY PRESENTATION OF  THE REQUIRED 

DOCUMENTS  ON A BUSINESS DAY AT OUR OFFICE AT THE ADDRESS LISTED HEREIN FOR 

CITY.   

 

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS TRANSFERABLE IN WHOLE BUT NOT IN PART ONE OR MORE 

TIMES, BUT IN EACH INSTANCE ONLY TO A SINGLE BENEFICIARY AS TRANSFEREE AND 

FOR THE THEN AVAILABLE AMOUNT, ASSUMING SUCH TRANSFER TO SUCH TRANSFEREE 

WOULD BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THEN APPLICABLE LAW AND REGULATION, INCLUDING 

BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE REGULATIONS OF THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE.   

WE HEREBY AGREE WITH YOU THAT ALL DRAFTS DRAWN UNDER AND IN COMPLIANCE 

WITH THE TERMS OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WILL BE DULY HONORED UPON 

PRESENTATION TO US OF THE DOCUMENT DESCRIBED IN PARAGRAPH 1 ABOVE ON OR 

BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT, WITHOUT INQUIRY AS TO 

THE ACCURACY THEREOF AND REGARDLESS OF WHETHER APPLICANT DISPUTES THE 

CONTENT OF ANY SUCH DOCUMENTS OR CERTIFICATIONS.  THE WRITTEN STATEMENT 

SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY THIS LETTER OF CREDIT FOR SURRENDER; PROVIDED, 

HOWEVER, THAT IF LESS THAN THE BALANCE OF THE LETTER OF CREDIT IS DRAWN, 

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT NEED NOT BE SURRENDERED AND SHALL CONTINUE IN FULL 

FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO THE UNUSED BALANCE OF THIS LETTER OF 

CREDIT. 

 

 

    ___________________________                           ___________________________ 

     AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE                                 AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



Exhibit E to Master Lease Agreement 

Exhibit A 

 

FORM OF REQUEST 

 

“The undersigned, an authorized representative of Beneficiary under Letter of Credit Resolution No. 

_____________ (“Letter of Credit”), certifies that the amount drawn hereunder represents the amount due 

to Beneficiary pursuant to and in connection with that certain Master Lease dated _________ between 

Beneficiary and Blaine County Housing Authority (as such Master Lease may be amended).  Beneficiary 

hereby demands the amount of $______________ under the Letter of Credit.  Payment to be made to the 

following account (insert wire instructions).” 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DE747426-F526-4E58-ABA2-88C259F2B12B



https://www.bcoha.org/uploads/2/3/1/4/23149336/blaine_county_analysis_of_impediments.pdf


https://www.bcoha.org/uploads/2/3/1/4/23149336/blaine_county_analysis_of_impediments.pdf


Blaine County Housing Authority, 12/11/25, Page 3 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-21 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO ADOPT THE
BLAINE COUNTY ANALYSIS OF IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING CHOICE 

WHEREAS, the BCHA FY25 Action Plan includes an action to produce an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice; 
and 

WHEREAS, the BCHA Board contracted with Root Policy Research and Rian Rooney to produce the Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice for Blaine County; and 

WHEREAS, the Analysis of Impediments includes findings regarding barriers to housing choice, disproportionate impacts 
of housing access on protected classes, and recommended goals and actions to address discriminatory actions and 
barriers to housing choice; and 

WHEREAS, adopting the Analysis of Impediments and taking action to overcome barriers is considered a best practice is 
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH); 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of the Blaine County Housing Authority, Blaine 
County, Idaho, as follows: 

Section 1. The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners adopts the 2025 Blaine County Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice. 

Section 2. The Blaine County Housing Authority Board of Commissioners directs BCHA staff to work with local partners 
and governments to support the implementation of recommended goals to address housing choice barriers in Blaine 
County. 

DATED this day of , 2025 

ATTEST: BLAINE COUNTY HOUSING 
AUTHORITY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS 

Executive Director Chair 












